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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWED

Overall Performance

For the year ended 30 April 2012, the Group generated turnover of
approximately HK$27.7 million (2011: approximately HK$52.1 million) with
a loss for the year of approximately HK$41.2 million (2011: approximately
HK$10.6 million). The Group expanded its property investment portfolio
by acquiring two investment properties during the year which would
strengthen the Property segment’s ability to generate increased rental
income stream in this sector, while our Securities segment has been
operating to achieve appropriate risk-adjusted returns and contributed a
net realised and unrealised loss on securities investment during this year
due to recent volatility in global economy and Hong Kong stock market
conditions. We have also been gradually and partially scaling down our
traditional products and operations in the Food & Beverage business
during the year, while continuing to seek and explore less capital-intensive
ways of operating the food & beverage business. Meanwhile, our Financial
Services business has been steady, and we have been exploring and
developing investment opportunities in our Technology & Media segment
including investing a 19% interest in an internet information company.

We will continue to explore and develop opportunities to invest in
businesses, especially those in connection with property, technology &
media, and food & beverage.

Business Review
Financial Services

During this year, the revenue of our financial services businesses reflected
no significant change as compared to last year.

Securities

Our securities business recorded a net realised and unrealised loss on
trading of securities investment of approximately HK$11.3 million (2011:
gain of approximately HK$8.3 million), which contributed a loss for our
securities segment of approximately HK$11.9 million (2011: profit of
approximately HK$7.4 million) for the year ended 30 April 2012.

Property

The revenue of the Group’s property business segment was approximately
HK$2.1 million (2011: approximately HK$1.1 million). The business
segment contributed a profit of approximately HK$5.0 million (2011: profit
of approximately HK$7.6 million) to the Group. Excluding the gain on
unrealised fair value, the recurring profit of the property business segment
would have been approximately HK$1.4 million (2011: approximately
HK$0.8 million).
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Technology & Media

Our technology & media business recorded revenue of approximately
HK$0.3 million (2011: approximately HK$0.6 million) with a business
segment loss for the year of approximately HK$0.2 million (2011: loss of
approximately HK$5.0 million).

Food & Beverage

During the year, revenue for our food & beverage businesses was
approximately HK$34.6 million (2011: approximately HK$40.1 million).
Excluding the gain of approximately HK$3.1 million for the disposal of
property, our segment loss would have been approximately HK$2.5 million
(2011: loss of approximately HK$3.3 million).

Seasonal/Cyclical Factors

The sales volume during festive periods is normally higher than the sales
volume in the slack periods of the year for food & beverage operations.

Financial Review
Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group maintained cash and cash equivalents as at 30 April 2012
amounting to approximately HK$125.6 million (2011: approximately
HK$197.2 million). The Group’s current ratio as at 30 April 2012 was 2.9
(2011: 3.6). The total equity of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$308.2 million (2011: approximately HK$348.9 million) as at 30 April
2012.

Gearing

The gearing ratio, as a ratio of bank borrowings and finance lease payable
to total equity, was 0.13 as at 30 April 2012 (2011: 0.08).

Exchange Rate Exposure

As at 30 April 2012, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents amounted to
approximately HK$125.6 million, the majority of which was in Hong Kong
dollars. Since the majority of the Group’s transactions, monetary assets and
liabilities is denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United States dollars and
Renminbi, with relatively stable exchange rates of Renminbi to Hong Kong
dollars and Hong Kong’s linked exchange rate between United States dollar
and Hong Kong dollar, the Group has minimal exposure to exchange rate
fluctuations.
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Treasury Policies

The Group generally finances its ordinary operations with internally
generated resources and bank borrowings. The interest rates of borrowings,
if applicable, are generally charged by reference to prevailing market rates.

Contingent Liabilities

In December 2005, a legal action was commenced by a former employee
of Kamboat Chinese Cuisine Company Limited (“KCCC"), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, against KCCC for the claim of approximately
HK$1,569,000 for personal injuries, loss and damages suffered during work
at KCCC. In the opinion of the directors, such claim should be adequately
covered by the Group’s insurance. Hence, no provision has been made in
the financial statements.

Commitments

The Group had capital commitments, which were contracted but not
provided for, in respect of purchase of property, plant and equipment
and investment properties amounting to HK$nil as at 30 April 2012 (2011:
approximately HK$13.2 million).

Future Prospects

The market environment remains challenging for the global economy in
2012. The unresolved European debt crisis and staggering U.S. economy,
together with tightening macroeconomic policies in the PRC, will continue
to affect international investment sentiment and the global economy.
Under the influence of financial uncertainties around the globe, the Hong
Kong and PRC economies are likely to remain uncertain in the near future.

In light of these uncertainties, the Group will seek to explore business
opportunities involving but not limited to our existing businesses and
consider whether to make any investment in assets and/or businesses and/
or cooperate with other business partners in order to enhance its growth
and future development.

Employment and Remuneration Policy

As at 30 April 2012, the Group had 158 (2011: 180) employees in Hong Kong
and the PRC. The Group has not experienced any significant problems with
its employees or disruptions due to labour disputes nor has it experienced
difficulties in the recruitment and retention of experienced staff. The Group
remunerates its employees based on industry practices. Its staff benefits,
welfare, share options and statutory contributions, if any, are made in
accordance with individual performance and prevailing labour laws of its
operating entities.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS
EE/EN

Executive Directors

Mr Vong Tat leong, David, aged 50, has been a director of the Company
since 2005 and serves as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr
Vong has acquired and run public companies, and made and advised on
cross-border mergersand acquisitions, involving capital marketsand private
equity, for over 20 years. He was formerly Vice Chairman of the Board of
Directors of CITIC 21CN Company Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, from 2003-2004. Before that, he was Director and Deputy Chief
Executive of i100 Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange, since he
co-founded the 1100 Group in 2000 with an international consortium whose
key participants included management and leading institutional investors.
Prior to that, he was Chief Executive at Pollon Infrastructure Corporation,
an infrastructure investment holding company focused on power and
telecom assets in the PRC, since 1997. Mr Vong is a graduate of Yale Law
School and The London School of Economics and Political Science.

Mr Xu Siping, aged 54, has been a director of the Company since 2005
and held a series of senior policy positions for about 18 years at the PRC's
State Economic and Trade Commission and the National Development
and Reform Commission (formerly the State Planning Commission), from
1983-2000, before retiring from public service in the central government.
Mr Xu is a graduate of Dalian University of Technology.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr Fung Ka Keung, David, aged 49, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 2005, is Director of Finance at
Golden Concord Holdings Limited and an Executive Director of Asia Energy
Logistics Group Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange. He is
a member of the Company’s Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. Mr Fung graduated from Leicester University.

Dr Lam Lee G., aged 53, has been an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company since 2005. He holds a Bachelor of Science in Mathematics
and Sciences, a Master of Science in Systems Science, and a Master of
Business Administration, all from the University of Ottawa in Canada, a
Post-graduate Diploma in Public Administration from Carleton University
in Canada, a Post-graduate Diploma in English and Hong Kong Law and
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a Bachelor of Law (Hons) from Manchester Metropolitan University in the
U.K., a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from the City University of Hong
Kong, a Master of Laws from the University of Wolverhampton in the U.K.,
a Certificate in Professional Accountancy from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong SCS, and a Doctor of Philosophy from the University of Hong
Kong. Dr. Lam has over 30 years of international experience in general
management, strategy consulting, corporate governance, investment
banking, and direct investment. He is Chairman of Monte Jade Science
and Technology Association of Hong Kong, and serves on the board of
several publicly-listed companies in the Asia Pacific region. Having served
as a part-time member of the Central Policy Unit of the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for two terms, Dr. Lam is a
member of the Jilin Province Committee (and former by a Specially-invited
Member of the Zhejiang Province Committee) of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers, a Board Member of the East-West Center Foundation, a member
of the Young Presidents’ Organization, a member of the Chief Executives
Organization, a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors and the Hong
Kong Institute of Arbitrators, a member of the General Committee and the
Corporate Governance Committee of the Chamber of Hong Kong Listed
Companies, a Board Member of the Australian Chamber of Commerce in
Hong Kong, a Vice President of the Hong Kong Real Estate Association, a
founding Board Member and the Honorary Treasurer of the Hong Kong —
Vietnam Chamber of Commerce and a visiting professor (in the fields of
corporate governance and investment banking) at the School of Economics
& Management of Tsinghua University in Beijing. He is Chairman of the
Company’s Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee, and a member
of the Company’s Nomination Committee.

Ms Wong Man Ngar, Edna, aged 46, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 2005, is Senior Consultant at
UBM Asia, a Director of Xact Limited, and was formerly Regional Marketing
Manager at American Express, and Management Consultant at The Mitchell
Madison Group in New York. She is a graduate of Columbia Business School
and is a member of the Company’s Audit Committee.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

The directors have pleasure to present their report and the audited financial
statements of Vongroup Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 30 April 2012.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the Group comprise financial services businesses, securities
businesses, property businesses, technology & media businesses and food
& beverage businesses. Details of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 17 to the financial statements.

Segment Information

An analysis of the Group’s segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities for
the year ended 30 April 2012 is set out in note 4 to the financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s loss for the year ended 30 April 2012 and the state of affairs
of the Company and of the Group at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 21 to 25. The directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
do not recommend payment of any dividends in respect of the year.

Summary of Financial Information

A summary of the published consolidated financial results and assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from
the published audited financial statements, is set out on page 154. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment, Lease Premium for
Land and Investment Properties

Details of movements in the property, plantand equipment, lease premium
for land and investment properties of the Group during the year are set out
in notes 13 to 15 to the financial statements, respectively. Further details of
the Group’s properties are set out on pages 155 and 156.
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Share Capital and Share Options

Details of movements in the Company’s issued share capital and share
options during the year, together with the reasons therefore, are set out in
notes 34 and 35 to the financial statements, respectively.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in
which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchases, Sale or Redemption of Securities

Neither of the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 30
April 2012.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the year are set out in note 36 to the financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

As at 30 April 2012, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law (2004 Revision) of
the Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately HK$256.0 million.
This includes the Company’s share premium account, in the amount
of approximately HK$540.6 million as at 30 April 2012, which may be
distributed provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position
to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. In addition, the Company’s capital redemption reserve in the
amount of approximately HK$0.26 million may be distributed in the form
of fully paid bonus shares.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The revenue attributable to the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for less than 30% of the total Group’s revenue for the year.
Purchases from the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for less
than 30% of the total Group’s purchases for the year.
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Commitments

Details of the commitments are set out in note 44 to the financial
statements.

Exchange Rates Exposure

Details of the exchange rate exposure are set out in note 43 to the financial
statements.

Directors
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr Vong Tat leong, David (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr Xu Siping

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr Fung Ka Keung, David

Dr Lam Lee G.

Ms Wong Man Ngar, Edna

In accordance with article 87 of the Company’s articles of association, Mr
Xu Siping and Ms Wong Man Ngar, Edna, will retire by rotation and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Independence Confirmation

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors a confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The board of Directors is satisfied with
the independence of each of the independent non-executive Directors.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Apart from the transactions disclosed in note 41 to the financial statements,
no Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company,
or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party during the year.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Mr Vong Tat leong, David has an employment agreement with a subsidiary
of the Group commencing on 3 September 2005, which will continue
thereafter unless and until terminated by either party giving not less than
one month’s notice in writing or until terminated by mutual consent.

Mr Xu Siping has an employment agreement with a subsidiary of the Group
commencing on 3 September 2005, which will continue thereafter unless
and until terminated by either party giving not less than one month’s
notice in writing or until terminated by mutual consent.

Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s board of Directors
with reference to the Directors” duties, responsibilities and performance
and the results of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Director’s and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

Asat30 April 2012, the interests and short positions of the Director and chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)), as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”),
were set out as follows:
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Interests in the Shares of the Company

The Company/

RER ARG 2 #Eid

Appropriate

Name of percentage of
Name of Director associated company Capacity Interest in shares shareholding
EEpns ARF HEARNEE 54 R Em BAFRAEDL
Mr Vong Tat leong, The Company Held through a 3,962,000,000 67.61%

David (Note) PAN/NE controlled

BEBELE (W)

corporation

ordinary shares
of HK$0.001 each

FRATIEGIHRE  3,962,000,0008%
A BREE0.001
B TT 2 B
Note: The interest of Mr Vong is held by Vongroup Holdings Limited, of which he is the Wit EhAE 7RI BAEARREREEAZE

ultimate beneficial owner.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 April 2012, none of the Directors had
registered an interest in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to be
recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed in the share option scheme disclosures in note 35 to the
financial statements, at no time during the year were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any Director or their respective spouse or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them or was the Company,
or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholder’s Interest in Shares and
Underlying Shares

As at 30 April 2012, the following interests of 5% or more of the issued
share capital of the Company were recorded in the register of interests
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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Percentage of
the Company’s
issued share

Interest in capital
Name of shareholders shares {ERATDET
BEERE HR B0 R BARz2BE DL
Mr Vong Tat leong, David (Note)
|mELEE (Hit) 3,962,000,000 67.61%
Vongroup Holdings Limited (Note)
=N BEEERBRAT (Hat) 3,962,000,000 67.61%

Note: The relationship between Vongroup Holdings Limited and Mr Vong is disclosed under

“Director’s and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures”

above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 April 2012, no person other than the
Directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the section
“Director’s and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” had registered an interest in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company that was required to be recorded under
Section 336 of the SFO.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a new share option scheme on 30 September 2011
(the “New Scheme”). Pursuant to the New Scheme, the Directors of the
Company, at their discretion, may grant options to Directors, officers and
employees (whether full time or part-time) of the Company or a subsidiary
and any other groups or classes of suppliers, customers, sub-contractors
or agents of the Group from time to time determined by the Directors as
having contributed or may contribute to the development and growth of
the Group. No share options were outstanding nor granted during the year
ended 30 April 2012.

Connected Transactions
Certain related party transactions entered by the Group during the year

ended 30 April 2012, which also constitute connected transactions under
the Listing Rules, are disclosed in note 41 to the financial statements.
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Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance and has compiled with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Further information
on the Company’s corporate governance practices is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s issued share
capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

Auditor
A resolution for re-appointment of CCIF CPA Limited as the auditor of the
Company for the ensuing year is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual

General Meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Vong Tat leong, David
Executive Director

Hong Kong
27 July 2012
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

The Company is firmly committed to maintaining and improving the
quality of corporate governance so to ensure better transparency of the
Company, protection of shareholders’ and stakeholders’ rights and enhance
shareholder value.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) introduced
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) effective from 1 January 2005. The Board
of Directors (the “Board”) responded promptly to review its corporate
governance practice and took appropriate actions to ensure that they are
in compliance with the CG Code. The Board also reviewed its corporate
governance practices and ensured that they are in compliance with the CG
Code in the year ended 30 April 2012.

Set out below are the status and details of compliance by the Company of
the CG Code in the year ended 30 April 2012.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions
of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”). Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirms that all Directors have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code during the
year ended 30 April 2012.

Board of Directors
Composition

As at 30 April 2012, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) comprises five
members: two executive Directors, namely, Mr Vong Tat leong, David (Chief
Executive Officer) and Mr Xu Siping; and three independent non- executive
Directors, namely, Mr Fung Ka Keung, David, who has the professional and
accounting qualifications required by the Listing Rules, Dr Lam Lee G. and
Ms Wong Man Ngar, Edna.

The biographical details of the Board members are set out on pages 5 and
6 of this Annual Report.
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Roles and Functions

The function of the Board is to formulate corporate strategy and business
development. The Board meets regularly to discuss operational issues and
valuate the financial performance of the Group. The Board will consider and
approve acquisition and disposal, remuneration policy, appointment and
retirement of directors, connected transactions, placing and repurchase of
shares and dividend policy of the Group in pursuit of its strategic goals,
if required. The chairmanship of the Board of the Company is elected at
each Board meeting. Control and day to day operation of the Company
is delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and the management of the
Company.

Board Meetings and Attendance Record

The Board held 7 Board meetings during the year ended 30 April 2012 and
additional Board meetings would be held when necessary. The Directors
who cannot attend in person might participate through other electronic
means of communications. Due notice and relevant materials for the
meeting were given to all Directors prior to the meetings in accordance
with the Company’s articles of association and the CG Code. Details of
individual attendance of Directors are set out in the table below:

Members of the Board Attended/Held

Mr VONG Tat leong, David 717
Mr XU Siping 717
Mr FUNG Ka Keung, David 717
Dr LAM Lee G. 6/7
Ms WONG Man Ngar, Edna 717

Relationship Among Members of the Board

There is no relationship among members of the Board in respect of
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received from each of its independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.
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According to the Code provision, the non-executive Directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. All Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of
the Company in accordance with the provisions of the Company’s articles
of association, and the terms of their appointment will be reviewed when
they are due for re-election. As such, the Board considers that sufficient
measures are in place to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance
practices are no less exacting than those set out in the CG Code.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

In accordance with the Code provision, the role of chairman and chief
executive officer (“CEQ”) should be performed by different individuals.
Since September 2005, Mr Vong Tat leong, David, who is director and CEO
of the Company, has also carried out the responsibilities of the chairman of
the Company. The Board considers the present structure is more suitable
to the Company for it can provide strong and consistent leadership and
allow for more efficient formulation and implementation of the Company’s
development strategies.

Board Committees

The Board has established four board committees to strengthen its
functions and corporate governance practices, namely, Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Executive Committee and Nomination
The Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee perform their specific roles in accordance with

Committee. Remuneration Committee and
their respective written terms of reference. The Executive Committee assists
the Group in corporate strategy, business development and operations.

Audit Committee

The Company’s Audit Committee is composed of three independent
non-executive Directors, currently, Dr Lam Lee G. (Chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr Fung Ka Keung, David and Ms Wong Man Ngar, Edna. The
Audit Committee members performed their duties within written terms of
reference formulated by the Company in accordance with the requirements
of the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering all relationships
between the Company and the auditing firm (including the provision of
non-audit services), monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements, any issues arising from the audit and any other auditors
may wish to raise and review of the Company’s internal control and risk
management.
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The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year with an attendance
rate of 100%. In the meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed the financial
statements for the year ended 30 April 2011 and for the six months ended
31 October 2011, considered and approved the audit work of the auditors
and reviewed the business and financial performance of the Company and
the internal control system and risk management.

The Group’s results for the year ended 30 April 2012 have been reviewed by
the Company’s Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The Company’s Remuneration Committee is composed of two independent
non-executive Directors, Dr Lam Lee G. (Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee) and Mr Fung Ka Keung, David, and one executive Director, Mr
Vong Tat leong, David. The Remuneration Committee members performed
their duties within written terms of reference formulated by the Company
in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible of developing remuneration
policies and in overseeing remuneration packages of the Directors whether
the emoluments offered are appropriate to the duties and performance
of the respective individuals concerned. It is the Company’s policy to offer
remuneration packages which are competitive and sufficient to retain
such individuals and no Director is involved in decision of his/her own
remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year with an
attendance rate of 100%. In the meeting, the Remuneration Committee
reviewed and approved the remuneration of Directors according to their
respective responsibilities, expertise and performance.

Nomination Committee

The Company’s Nomination Committee is composed of two independent
non-executive Directors, Dr Lam Lee G and Mr Fung Ka Keung, David
and one executive Director, Mr Vong Tat leong, David (Chairman of the
Nomination Committee). The Nomination Committee members performed
their duties with written terms of reference formulated by the Company in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

The Nomination Committee is responsible to review the structure, size
and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board, identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships. The Nomination Committee
also responsible to assess the independence of the INEDs and to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
directors and succession planning for directors, in particular the Chairman
and the Chief Executive.
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The Nomination Committee was established in March 2012, no Nomination
Committee meeting was held during the year ended 30 April 2012.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The amount of audit fee payable to CCIF CPA Limited for the year ended 30
April 2012 was HK$670,000.

Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of internal controls of
the Company and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board is committed to
implementing an effective and sound internal control system to safeguard
the interest of shareholders and the Group’s assets. The Board has delegated
to the management the implementation of the system of internal controls
and reviewing of all relevant financial, operational, compliance controls
and risk management functions within an established framework.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements for the year under review. The Directors ensure the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group are in accordance with statutory
requirements and suitable accounting policies.

The statement of the Auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report of this Annual Report.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company communicates with its shareholders through different
channels, including annual general meetings, special general meetings,
annual and interim reports, notices of general meetings and circulars
sent to shareholders by post, announcements on the website of the Stock
Exchange and the Company’s website.

Registered shareholders are notified by post of the shareholders’ meetings.
Any registered shareholder is entitled to attend and vote at the annual and
special general meetings, provided that his/her/its shares have been fully
paid up and recorded in the register of members of the Company.

Shareholders or investors can make enquiries or proposals to the Company
by putting their enquiries or proposals to the Company through the contact
details listed in our Company’s website.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHEMERE

®

CCIF
CCIF CPA LIMITED
RE BB AEBHAERAE

34/F The Lee Gardens
33 Hysan Avenue
Causeway Bay Hong Kong
7 B HIHE335R
FIE344E

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF VONGROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Vongroup Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages
21 to 153, which comprise the consolidated and company statements of
financial position as at 30 April 2012, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statementsthat giveatrue and fairview inaccordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 30 April
2012, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

CCIF CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 27 July 2012

Kwok Cheuk Yuen
Practising Certificate Number P02412
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meZHWER
For the year ended 30 April 2012 &Z —ZF——F WA=+ HILFE
2012 2011
—F-=F —FT—F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T FHET THET
Turnover M 5 27,650 52,112
Other revenue HA Wz 1,215 1,766
Other gains Hi AR 22,850 4,781
Cost of inventories consumed LOHRFEE KA 21(b) (13,972) (14,347)
Cost of forfeited collateral sold A8 B 0L WO 1R
Z BN 21(b) (254) (295)
Staff costs 8 TR (18,910) (17,571)
Operating lease rentals KBRS (5,020) (7,557)
Depreciation and amortisation e s (1,799) (1,977)
Other expenses HAhFsZ (54,104) (33,750)
Change in fair value of investment properties 3% &% 7 A F{EE 15 3,636 6,786
Loss from operations REEE 6 (38,708) (10,052)
Finance costs BT AR 7 (510) (271)
Share of (loss)/profit of a JEE H A S E S
jointly-controlled entity (E1),/ %A (1,933) 40
Loss before taxation MR B R (41,151) (10,283)
Income tax PGt 8(a) (69) (280)
Loss for the year REEEE (41,220) (10,563)
Other comprehensive income Hin 2wk
Exchange differences arising on BMEBINEBEE
translation of foreign operations, ZEHZER
with no income tax effect (KPR 2) 535 620
Total comprehensive expense for the year FREZHEBRAZEEE (40,685) (9,943)
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2012 2011
—E-——fF —FT——%F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
PaE FExT FET
Loss for the year attributable to: THEEMFREE :
Owners of the Company VIN/NETEZ =N (41,220) (7,674)
Non-controlling interests FEVERR A A - (2,889)
(41,220) (10,563)
Total comprehensive expense for T3 EEMFR
the year attributable to: THEMXAEHE
Owners of the Company KABHER A (40,685) (7,054)
Non-controlling interests FEPERR A A - (2,889)
(40,685) (9,943)
HK$ HK$
BT BTT
Loss per share BRER
— Basic and diluted — EARREE 12 (0.0070) (0.0013)
The notes on pages 29 to 153 form an integral part of these financial 55298 £ 51538 7 M@ S8 EHRER 2 —

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e U HMRAER

As at 30 April 2012 R —Z——FPUH =+H

2012 2011
—B-=F —FT——F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
bE=s FHET FHET
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB R 13 18,742 7,678
Lease premium for land T E 14 1,426 1,414
Investment properties KB 15 119,541 99,720
Goodwill Gl 16 6,212 8,988
Interest in a jointly-controlled entity PRSI ERE 2 s 18 - 1,896
Deposits paid for acquisition REBEEWE  BEK
of property, plant and equipment RIEA R E Y
and investment properties RN 19 255 2,224
Available-for-sale investments A HERE 20 16,882 21,834
163,058 143,754
Current assets REEE
Lease premium for land TS 14 34 33
Inventories FE 21 7,711 9,678
Forfeited collateral held for sale FERL WK IR M 21 280 217
Accounts receivable JFEWBR X 22 471 489
Moneylending loan receivables FEW R E B 3K 23 23,026 14,655
Deposits, prepayments and other e BRERR
receivables Hth fE U FRIE 24 17,531 14,661
Amount due from a jointly-controlled entity  J& Yt [F] 42 I & 52 2R I8 25 234 267
Equity investments at fair value through BN FEAEZRSIER
profit or loss ZBAIRE 26 30,043 46,683
Derivative financial instrument PTEMBITA 27 16,159 -
Cash and cash equivalents He kRS EEIEE 28 125,647 197,198
221,136 283,881
Current liabilities nBAE
Accounts payable FETER K 29 1,195 978
Accruals and deposits received JERT A K B Wit 30 11,968 27,928
Tax payables FEAT 718 8(b) 22,101 21,414
Finance lease payable — current portion FET e & FH 49 RIR
—BNEAER 31 118 -
Bank borrowings RITIEE 32 39,794 27,797
75,176 78,117

Net current assets REBEEFRE 145,960 205,764
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2012 2011

—EB-=-F —FT—F

Note HK$’000 HK$’000

B 5 FH T TBT

Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBERS 309,018 349,518
Non-current liabilities kRBEE

Finance lease payable — long-term portion  J&{ @& FH 493018

— RHEIED 31 185 =

Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEEE 33 591 591

776 591

NET ASSETS EEZFE 308,242 348,927
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAR

Share capital A& 34 5,860 5,860

Reserves e 36 302,382 343,067

TOTAL EQUITY s 308,242 348,927

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 July 2012. R=-ZT——F+ A -+ HEES o8 ELF
TEZA o

On behalf of the board RERESFE

Vong Tat leong, David Xu Siping
Director Director
EF EFE

The notes on pages 29 to 153 form an integral part of these financial  £529B 51538 2 M kB S B HmER 2 —
statements. BB ©
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B 7 AR R 3=
As at 30 April 2012 R —Z——FPUH =+H
2012 2011
—F-=F —FT—F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Mo FET T T
Non-current assets FEREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIKE 17 - 32,090
Current assets REEE
Deposits, prepayments and e - FBERR
other receivables R B A e WK IR 24 9,200 5
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B B A Bl T 17 242,149 307,618
Cash and cash equivalents Re kRS EEIEE 28 13,584 25,503
264,933 333,126
Current liabilities HREEE
Accruals and deposits received EErsIE kB Wit e 30 3,024 3,352
Net current assets REEEFRE 261,909 329,774
NET ASSETS BEEFE 261,909 361,864
CAPITAL AND RESERVES IR A R {48
Share capital &7 34 5,860 5,860
Reserves f#fE 36 256,049 356,004
TOTAL EQUITY MR 261,909 361,864

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 July 2

2012.

On behalf of the board

Vong Tat leong, David
Director

=HES

EF

The notes on pages 29 to 153 form an integral part of these financial

statements.

R o

RREFE

Xu Siping
Director
B
EFE
5 o

E-—FELA-TLRAEESFSHENK

FEEFI3E MBI ER KRR —
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mAEmBER

For the year ended 30 April 2012 BZ =L ——F A=+ HILFE

Attributahle
(apital  Statutory  Exchange to owners Non-
Share Share  redemption surplus  translation  Accumulated ofthe  controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve losses  Company interests Total
k& EE ARE FER
hx  RiEE BRERE BBEE EXRE  ZEEE EEARGE Ei szt
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
Thr Thr T Tin T Thr Thr T Tin
At 1 May 2010 R-F-FERA-R 5,860 533,020 262 156 531 (183,848) 355,981 9227 365,208
Loss for the year TERER - - - - - (7674 (7674) 2889 (10563)
Exchange adjustment B AR - - - - 538 - 538 - 538
Share of reserve movements of ~ (T 2X FI¥EH B3
jointly controlled entity g2 - - - - 8 - 8 - 8
Total comprehensive expense  ERNZEAF XL
for the year - - - - 620 (7,674) (7.054) (2.889) (9.948)
Disposal of a subsidiary HERBAR - - - - - - - (6,339) (6339)
Transfer a3 - - - 9 - (99) — - —
At 30 April 2011 and RZE-—EMA=TA
1May 2011 Fh-E——F
hA-A 5,860 533,020 262 255 1,151 (191,621) 348927 - 348927
Loss for the year AFEEE - - - - . ]mn) 20 - W)
Eichange adjustment B AR - - - - 498 - 498 - 498
Share of reserve movements of ~ fE( AL EIEHI EEE4)
jointly controlled entity FhigE - = = = 37 - 37 = 3
Total comprehensive expense ~ FRNZAF X 25
for the year - - - - 535 (41,220 (40,685) - (40,685)
Transfer g2 - - - 15 - 15 - - -
At30 April 2012 RZZ-Z4WA=+H 580 533,00 26 M0 1,686 (3285) 30824 - 3mM

The notes on pages 29 to 153 form an integral part of these financial 55298 &= #1538 2 M s R I B S REx 2 —

statements. D ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERTRER

For the year ended 30 April 2012 &Z —ZF——F WA=+ HILFE

2012 2011
—E--F —T——F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
By aE TERT FHT
Operating activities e
Loss before taxation BRI AIEE (41,151) (10,283)
Adjustments for: MEREREE
Share of loss/(profit) of a A E
jointly-controlled entity &8 Carl) 1,933 (40)
Interest income FEMA 5 (330) (647)
Dividend income from listed securities EiESFZBRBEHA 5, 6 (672) (951)
Fair value gain on derivative financial PMTEMBIAZ A FE
instrument Uz 27 (16,159) =
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHEEREL
investments REEE 6, 20 19,382 -
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREEE 16 2,776 -
Finance costs BT RCAR 7 510 271
Depreciation of property, ME - BE R
plant and equipment REITE 13 1,766 1,945
Amortisation of lease premium for land + HhFH S5y 14 33 32
Impairment loss on other receivables Hfth e W FRIE 2
MEREE 24 220 2,500
Change in fair value of investment properties LB
NFEE 15 (3,636) (6,786)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary PEMBAR W 6 - (4,204)
Loss on disposal of investment properties HEREMEZER 6 182 =
Written back of accruals M sE TR IE 5 (3,600) -
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - KEK
equipment Ff 2 W FE 56 (3,091) (577)
(41,837) (18,740)
Changes in working capital EEESNE
Decrease in inventories FEERD 1,967 1,273
Increase in forfeited collateral held for sale FEBRUIEHE T In (63) (14)
Decrease/(increase) in accounts receivable JFEULBR FR
WA/ (35n) 18 (38)
Increase in moneylending loan receivables FEU B E FRIE AN (8,371) (2,682)
Increase in deposits, prepayments e RRERRKE
and other receivables A e Y ZRIE N (3,051) (7,544)
Decrease/(increase) in amount due from a JE L S [R] P22 6
jointly-controlled entity EEB AL,/ (32) 33 (40)
Decrease/(increase) in equity investments at HAFEAIBRFIER 2 &
fair value through profit or loss HIHERD /() 16,640 (3,894)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable FERTBRFIE AN CRA) 217 (2,478)
(Decrease)/increase in accruals and FERT R IE R B Wik
deposits received R,/ #Em (12,436) 7,895
Cash used in operations EEMARS (46,883) (26,262)
PRC enterprise income tax paid BB ERSHR 8(b) (47) (181)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEENEH 8(b) (22) -
Net cash outflow from operating activities REXBEEZ
Be&mtFE (46,952) (26,443)
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2012 2011
—E-—F —T——%F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
P ek FTERT FHET
Investing activities REZED
Interest received EUIRFILE 5 330 647
Dividend received from listed securities B ETESFRE 5 672 951
Dividend received from a jointly-controlled entity & 4¢— & F£[RI% %]
BERIKRE - 442
Acquisition of investment properties BEREYH (17,218) (12,394)
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment BEYX - BELRE (14,432) (145)
Increase in deposits paid in HEEME  BER
respect of acquisition of property, FEE 2SN
plant and equipment 19 (98) (2,224)
Net proceeds from disposal HEREMEME
of investment properties FIEFE 15,988 -
Net proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BE R
plant and equipment B Z TS RIBFRE 7,104 5,055
Decrease in pledged time deposits EERERFEFTR L - 190
Disposal of a subsidiary, net of cash required HERBAR -
BB 2R E 38 - 275)
Acquisition of available-for-sale investments BEAMHEERE 20 (14,430) (420)
Acquisition of subsidiaries, BEWEAR -
net of cash acquired HRBAZE 2 37 (15,100) (16,600)
Net cash outflow from investing activities RETEHELEZRS
TR (37,184) (24,773)
Financing activities B EEE
Other interest paid HMBEMFE (508) (267)
Interest element of finance lease rentals paid EfNEERS 2L 7 2) @)
Proceeds from new bank borrowings HIRTTIEE SR 15,193 75,106
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE (3,196) (62,646)
Repayment of finance lease payable ERENEERAKIE - (234)
Net cash inflow from financing activities BMETHELEZRS
WARE 11,487 11,955
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEER
W FERE (72,649) (39,261)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNETE R BB 2 B 1,098 1,426
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F¥Z2HRERELEEER 197,198 235,033
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRZBEERESEEEE 28 125,647 197,198

The notes on pages 29 to 153 form an integral part of these financial 55298 F 51538 Z M T I ZBI ISRz 2 —
statements. 2B o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR T

For the year ended 30 April 2012 B2 —ZF——FWMA =+ HILFE
RNREHR

1. Corporate information 1.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111. The address
of its principal place of business is 17A, EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 17.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, at 30 April 2012,
Vongroup Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands, which owns 67.61% of the issued share capital of the
Company, is the ultimate holding company and Mr. Vong Tat leong,
David is the ultimate controlling party of the Company.

AArIRERSES AT ERFASEHSHE
M R ER R 2 BERAR - ZMFERE
It 41F 57 7 Cricket Square Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111 » £ B &
B 2 AR A BB N RE BRI B 3883
FRERBEREIS17TEAE o XRElZBRHOHRE
BHAERZHER AR ([BRAT]) Eik L
o e

ARE—HREZERAR - HHELQR
ZEB BN

ARBEERAE R-T——FMWA=+
A S=nEBEXEERERAR (—ERESB
BXREFMANZAR) BEARAARZ
67.61%E AT » BAR Al Z S ARIERR
AR MEBEBAENARARZRRIE
BRAL ©

2. Principal accounting policies 2. FESFHBE
(a) Statement of compliance (a) EHREH

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs which
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent that they
are relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.

HEMBHRRTIRIEHE B
g ([BESEAE]) B 2AEE
RERVBHREE] ((FEMBERE
R WREBREAEERZ@RIE
AU HREEL - FEEHER (&
BEEL]) kRl FEARE
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BRI T
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2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 April
2012 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries and the Group’s
interest in a jointly-controlled entity.

Items included in the financial statements of each entity in the
Group are measured using the currency that best reflects the
economic substance of the underlying events and circumstances
relevant to the entity. These financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), rounded to the nearest thousand
except for per share data. Hong Kong dollar is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis, except for the investment
properties, derivative financial instrument and equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss that have been measured at fair
value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have a significant effect on the financial statements and
estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the
next year are discussed in note 42.

2. FESFHEEK (&)
(b) IREZE
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2. TESFHEER (&

2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

() HIELAIRHFZRER

(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists
when the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from
its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently are exercisable are taken into account.

Aninvestment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences
until the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and
transactions and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the owners of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and the
owners of the Company.
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2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling
and non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect
the change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group losses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note
2(k)) or, when appropriate, the costs on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate.

In the Company's statements of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note
2(i)), unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

(d) Business combinations

Business combinations on or after 1 May 2010

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(d) Business combinations (Continued)

Business combinations on or after 1 May 2010 (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values, except that:

a deferred tax asset or liability arising from the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination
and the potential tax effects of temporary differences and
carry forwards of an acquiree that exist at the acquisition
date or arise as a result of the acquisition are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Tax;

assets or liabilities relating to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS 19
Employee Benefits;

liabilities or equity instruments relating to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment
at the acquisition date; and

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance
with that Standard.
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2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(d) Business combinations (Continued)

Business combinations on or after 1 May 2010 (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree
(if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-
by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are
measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis
specified in another HKFRSs.

Where the consideration transferred by the Group transfers in
a business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year
from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date.
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2. FESFEEK (&)

2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(d) EHEG ()

(d) Business combinations (Continued)

Business combinations on or after 1 May 2010 (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration
is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with
HKAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as
appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to
fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group
obtains control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree
prior to the acquisition date that have previously been recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were
disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete
by the end of the reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for
which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), or
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised at that date.

The policy described above is applied to all business combinations
that take place on or after 1 May 2010.

R-E—FFAH-HHZEZRE
BEavt (&)

TEEREATEHHEFAERNIAR
{El\\$fﬁﬁ’%@}5}]ﬁf§mEJFJ:Eﬁﬂ—rHXJ%
REAREBERIMSIE - Dl AER
E’\]EJZ%KEZ:@Eﬁé:#EiElHHE%ﬁ

FTENAREBZEE BT AR
"*Eﬁéiﬁiféﬁa’]&%ﬁ{ﬁi/ﬁiﬁﬁ”
BB ERFEIRGFELA - R
RiTEXNB A ST ERAEI375 A -
AR ERIALE RAEEA) £
HigREAMENTE  WEEmTP
MR AR E R U ax sk 518 o

EXRBAHNOBERER  AKER
B 2 BB 77 i R IR Wi B
(AKERGEHIEER) 2R FE
EXFTE  ARANEEZ WS
1B (mA) ARBRETER - RIER
HIpThR B RaESE YO RE
FEHEMEEKEER S AW
NEHERRZRIETEZEHORE

1B2s o

WREBRERBEH 2 REHRE R
?f%?‘/—\ﬁ%}ﬂ?%ﬁ@%)ﬁfi » BIIAR

BAREESHERATKETE
IEZIEE c WEESEARTEDRR
AT (R LX) RERBEINEES
BE - ARRAESZREEAHE
FEZEERBROFIEER o
HEZEEN BYERCHRALHE
wREE

FRBRERNR -_ZFT—FFAA—H
RZRBEZFIBERBFEH -



36

Vongroup Limited * Annual Report 2012

2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(d) Business combinations (Continued)

Business combinations prior 1 May 2010

Acquisition of businesses was accounted for using the purchase
method. The cost of the acquisition was measured at the
aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets
given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus
any costs directly attributable to the business combination. The
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
that met the relevant conditions for recognition were generally
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition was recognised as an asset and
initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the
acquisition over the Group’s interest in the recognised amounts
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognised. If, after assessment, the Group’s interest in the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities exceeded the cost of the acquisition, the
excess was recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The non-controlling interest in the acquiree was initially
measured at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of the assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the acquiree.

Contingent consideration was recognised, if and only if, the
contingent consideration was probable and could be measured
reliably. Subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
were recognised against the cost of the acquisition.

Business combinations achieved in stages were accounted for
as separate steps. Goodwill was determined at each step. Any
additional acquisition did not affect the previously recognised
goodwill.
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2. FESFEEK (&)

2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(e) Jointly-controlled entities (e) REZHERE

A jointly-controlled entity is an entity which operates under a
contractual arrangement between the Group or Company and
other parties, where the contractual arrangement establishes that
the Group or Company and one or more of the other parties share
joint control over the economic activity of the entity.

An investment in a jointly-controlled entity is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements under the equity method,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale). Under the equity
method, the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair
values of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the
post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the investee’s net
assets and any impairment loss relating to the investment (see
notes 2(i)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and
any impairment losses for the year are recognised in the profit or
loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax
items of the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
jointly-controlled entity, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the investment under
the equity method together with the Group’s long-term interests
that in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the
jointly controlled entity.
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2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(e) Jointly-controlled entities (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its jointly-controlled entities are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

When the Group ceases to have joint control over a jointly-controlled
entity, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at the date
when significant influence or joint control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as
established at the date of acquisition of the business (see accounting
policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently whenever
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. If some or all
of the goodwill allocated to a cash-generating unit was acquired
in a business combination during the current annual period, that
unit shall be tested for impairment before the end of the current
annual period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.
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2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(

(g)

Goodwill (Continued)

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the calculation of
the profit or loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2(i)):

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any,
using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives
as follows:

— leasehold land classified as held under finance leases is
depreciated over the term of lease;

—  buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the unexpired term of
lease and their estimated useful lives, being no more than 50
years after the date of completion;

— other property, plant and equipment are depreciated on
a straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Leasehold land classified ~ Shorter of remaining lease

as finance leases term or useful life

Leasehold improvements ~ 20% over the remaining

term of the lease,

if shorter
Furniture, fixtures 10% — 20%
and equipment
Motor vehicles 20%
Utensils and supplies 33'/3%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value,
if any, are reviewed annually.
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2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(g) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items. Cost may also include transfers
from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges
of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carryingamount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net proceeds on disposal and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.

(h) Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned
or held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(v)) to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation. These include land held
fora currently undetermined future use and property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated in the statement of financial
position at fair value, unless they are still in the course of
construction or development at the end of the reporting period
and their fair value cannot be reliably determined at that time.
Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from the
retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognised
in profit or loss. Rental income from investment properties is
accounted for as described in note 2(I)(v).
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2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(h) Investment properties (Continued)

(1)

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the
interest is classified and accounted for as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis. Any such property interest which
has been classified as an investment property is accounted for as
if it were held under a finance lease (see note 2(v)), and the same
accounting policies are applied to that interest as are applied to
other investment properties leased under finance leases. Lease
payments are accounted for as described in note 2(v).

Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and other
receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current and non-
current receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost
or are classified as available-for-sale equity securities are
reviewed at the end of each financial period to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; and

— asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.
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2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (Continued)

U

Impairment of investments in equity securities and other
receivables (Continued)

Ifany such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined
and recognised as follows:

—  For investments in subsidiaries and jointly-controlled
entity (including those recognised using the equity
method (see note 2(e))), the impairment loss is measured
by comparing the recoverable amount of the investment
with its carrying amount in accordance with note 2(i)
(ii). The impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount in accordance with note 2(i)(ii).

— For unquoted equity securities carried at cost,
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the financial asset and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset where
the effect of discounting is material. Impairment losses
for equity securities are not reversed.

— Foraccounts receivable and other financial assets carried
at amortised cost, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets share similar
risk characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.
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2. Principal accounting policies (Continued) 2. TEESHHE (&)

(i) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) BERIE (&)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and other
receivables (Continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall
not result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.

—  For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative loss
that has been recognised in the fair value reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss. The amount of the
cumulative loss that is recognised in profit or loss is
the difference between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect
of available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in
the fair value of such assets is recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised in
respect of accounts receivable included within accounts and
other receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but
not remote. In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful
debtsarerecorded usinganallowance account. When the Group
is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against accounts receivable directly
and any amounts held in the allowance account relating to
that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)
(i) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or, except in the case of
goodwill an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;
— lease premium for land; and
—  goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not there is any indication
of impairment.

—  C(alculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing
its value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs to sell, or value in use,
if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is
not reversed.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are recognised.
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2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in compliance with
HKAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting, in respect of the first
six months of the financial year. At the end of the interim
period, the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of
the financial year.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect
of goodwill and available-for-sale equity securities carried at
cost are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case
even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised
had the impairment been assessed only at the end of the
financial year to which the interim period relates.

(j) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Company or Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(k) Financial assets

The Group classified its financial assets into the following

categories: available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss and loans and receivables. The

classification depends on the purpose for which the financial

assets were acquired. Management determines the classification

of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(1)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain
or loss being recognised directly in equity. Dividend income
from these investments is recognised in profit or loss in
accordance with the policy set out in note 2(I) and, where
these investments are interest-bearing, interest calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in profit
or loss as set out in note 2(l). When these investments
are derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale financial assets that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity instruments, they are measured at cost less any
identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting
period subsequent to initial recognition.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group and/or the Company commits to purchase/sell the
investments or when they expire.
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2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)
(k) Financial assets (Continued)
(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss when the financial asset is either held
for trading or it is designated as financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling it in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss upon initial recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group's documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss.
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2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(k) Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Fair value
is determined in the manner described in note 43.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Loans and receivables (including accounts
receivable, moneylending loan receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, and other receivables as described in note 45)
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Derivative financial instruments

including termination right,
recognised at fair value at the date when derivative contracts

Derivatives, are initially
are entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their
fair value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless
the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which case the timing of the recognition in

profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.
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2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

() Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivables. Provided it is probable that the economic

benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if

applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in

profit or loss as follows:

U

(11)

(iii)

(v)

Revenue from food & beverage businesses

Revenue from food & beverage businesses is recognised
when catering services have been provided to customers.

Revenue from financial services

— Loan interest income from Hong Kong is recognised
using the effective interest method for all loans that the
Group deems to be collectible based on historical loan
redemption statistics.

— Loan interest income from PRC, which is collected from
the customer at the inception of the financial services, is
recognised ratably over the term of the loan made.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis,
taking into account the principal amounts outstanding and
the interest rates applicable.

Sales of forfeited collateral

Sales of forfeited collateral are recognised on the transfer of
risks and rewards of ownership, which generally coincides
with the time when the forfeited collateral is delivered and
the title has passed to customers.
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2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

() Revenue recognition (Continued)

v)

(vi)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals
are recognised as income in the accounting period in which
they are earned.

Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder's right to receive payment is
established. Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment goes ex-
dividend.

(vii) Sale of trading securities

Revenue on sale of trading securities is recognised on a trade
date basis when the relevant transactions are executed.

(viii) Revenue from technology & media business

Revenue from technology & media business is recognised
when the service rendered have been performed to
customers.
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2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(m) Trade and other receivables

(n)

(o)

(r)

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts, except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to related
parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables
are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts
(see note 2(i)).

Moneylending loan receivables

Moneylending loan receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. A typical moneylending loan has a
term of not more than one year. If the loan is not repaid, the
loan principal becomes the cost of the forfeited collateral, which
is held for sale.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss, except those arising from foreign currency
borrowings used to hedge a net investment in a foreign operation
which are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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2. FESFEEK (&)

2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(p) M (&)

(p) Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial
position items, including goodwill on consolidation of foreign
operations acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange translation
reserve. Goodwill on consolidation of a foreign operation acquired
before 1 January 2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate
that applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign operation.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a jointly-controlled
entity that includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not result
in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to
non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.
For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of a jointly
controlled entity that do not result in the Group losing joint
control), the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.
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2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(q) Retirement scheme

(r)

The Group operates a defined contribution mandatory provident
fund retirement benefits scheme (the “Hong Kong Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance, for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the Hong
Kong Scheme. The Hong Kong Scheme became effective on 1
December 2000. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the statement
of comprehensive income as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the Hong Kong Scheme. The assets of the Hong
Kong Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the Hong Kong Scheme.

For the Group’s PRC operations participate in defined contribution
retirement plans managed by the local municipal government
in the locations in which it operates. The PRC operations are
required to contribute to a state-sponsored retirement plan
for all its PRC employees at certain percentages of the basic
salaries predetermined by the local governments. The relevant
authorities of the local municipal government in the PRC is
responsible for the retirement benefit obligations payable to
the Group’s retire employees. The Group has no obligation for
payment of retirement benefits beyond the annual contribution.
The contribution payable is charged as an expense to profit or loss
as and when incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out basis and comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(r)

(s)

(1

Inventories (Continued)
When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down
of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down
of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Forfeited collateral held for sale

Forfeited collateral held for sale consists of forfeited collateral,
from moneylending loans not repaid. The forfeited collateral is
stated at the lower of cost (moneylending loan principal) and
net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
The cost of forfeited collateral held for sale, computed on the
specific identification basis, is recorded as a cost of revenue at
the time of sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that the
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated statement
of cash flows.
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2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(u) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised
directly in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also
arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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2. TESFHEER (&

2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(u) Frs# (&)

(u) Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries
to the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the
case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the
Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company
or the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously: or
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2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(u) Income tax (Continued)

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
and deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model in accordance with
HKAS 40 Investment Property, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and
is held within a business model of the Group whose business
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with the
above general principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based on the
expected manner as to how the properties will be recovered).

(v) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether
the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.
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2. TESFHEER (&

2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

v) HEEE (/&)

(v) Leased assets (Continued)

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group () HETAEEFEEZSE
AEERBHERGCEE (A
WEB 2 B AR D Rk & B HRE
MEBEAREE) HHEARER
BRAOFEE - T2EBBERZ
BAREDREREEHREAREE

Assets held by the Group under leases which transfer to the
Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as being held under finance leases. Leases
which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group are classified as operating leases,

with the following exception:

Property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property
is classified as investment property on a property-by-
property basis and, if classified as investment property,
is accounted for as if held under a finance lease (see note
2(v)(ii)); and

Land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair
value of which cannot be measured separately from the
fair value of a building situated thereon at the inception
of the lease, is accounted for as being held under a finance
lease, unless the building is also clearly held under an
operating lease. For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first entered into by
the Group, or taken over from the previous lessee.
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2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(v) Leased assets (Continued)

(11)

(i)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance
leases, the amounts representing the fair value of the leased
asset, or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments, of such assets are included in property, plant
and equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, are recorded as obligations under finance
leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the
cost or valuation of the assets over the term of the relevant
lease or, where it is likely the Company or Group will obtain
ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set out in note
2(g). Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policy as set out in note 2(i). Finance charges
implicitin the lease payments are charged to profit or loss over
the period of the leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of
the obligations for each accounting period.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are charged to profit or loss
in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from
the leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals are charged as expenses
in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

(w) Employee benefits

U

Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contribution
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.
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2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(w) Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding increase
in capital reserve within equity. The fair value is measured
at grant date using the binomial pricing model taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled to the
options, the total estimated fair value of the options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the probability
that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to the profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised
as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of
options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share premium account) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is
without realistic possibility of withdrawal.
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2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)
(x) Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related
to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

() The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity.
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2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the chief operating
decision maker for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of that assets. Other borrowing
costs are expensed in profit or loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted
or complete.
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2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(aa)Research and development costs

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred,
except where the product or process is clearly defined and the
costs attributable to the product or process can be separately
identified and measured reliably; is technically feasible; the
Group intends to produce and market, or use the product or
process; the existence of a market for the product or process or,
if it is to be used internally rather than sold, its usefulness to the
Group, can be demonstrated; and adequate resources exist, or
their availability can be demonstrated, to complete the project
and market or use the product or process.

Such development costs are recognised as an asset to the extent
of the amount that, taken together with further development
costs, related production costs, and selling and administrative
costs directly incurred in marketing the product, is probable
of being recovered from related future economic benefits. The
excess amount is written off as incurred.

Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of
gaining new scientific or technical knowledge and understanding,
is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Expenditure on development activities is capitalised if the
product or process is technically and commercially feasible and
the Group has sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes the cost
of materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Capitalised development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see note 2(i)).
Other development expenditure is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.
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2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(ab)st B EE

(ab)Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees
payable, using the effective interest method.

3. Application of new and revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following applicable
new and revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA.

Amendments to HKFRSs Improvements to
HKFRSs issued in 2010

HKAS 24 (as revised in 2009) Related Party Disclosures

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)
—Int 14

Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement

HK (IFRIC) — Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities

with Equity Instruments

Except as described below, the application of the new and revised
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material effect on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and prior
accounting periods and/or on the disclosures set out in these financial
statements.

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures (as revised in
2009)

HKAS 24 (as revised in 2009) has been revised on the following two
aspects: (a) HKAS 24 (as revised in 2009) has changed the definition of
a related party and (b) HKAS 24 (as revised in 2009) introduces a partial
exemption from the disclosure requirements for government-related
entities.
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3. Application of new and revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures (as revised in
2009) (Continued)

The Company and its subsidiaries are not government-related entities.
The application of the revised definition of related party set out in
HKAS 24 (as revised in 2009) in the current year has not resulted in
the identification of related parties that were not identified as related
parties under the previous Standard. The related party disclosures set
out in note 41 are not required to be changed to reflect the application
of the revised Standard.

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2010

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2010 omnibus standard introduces
a number of amendments to the disclosure requirements in HKFRS
7 Financial instruments: Disclosures. The disclosures about the
Group’s and the Company’s financial instruments in note 43 have
been conformed to the amended disclosure requirements. These
amendments do not have any material impact on the classification,
recognition and measurements of the amounts recognised in the
financial statements in the current and previous periods.

Early adoption of HKAS 12 (Amendment) ‘Income
taxes — Deferred tax: recovery of underlying assets’

In December 2010, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants promulgated HKAS 12 (Amendment) ‘Income taxes —
Deferred tax: recovery of underlying assets’, to introduce an exception
to the principle for the measurement of deferred tax assets or
liabilities arising on an investment property measured at fair value.
HKAS 12 requires an entity to measure the deferred tax relating to an
asset depending on whether the entity expects to recover the carrying
amount of the asset through use or sale. The amendment introduces
a rebuttable presumption that an investment property measured at
fair value is recovered entirely by sale. The amendment is applicable
retrospectively to the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 May 2012 with early adoption permitted.
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3. Application of new and revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

Early adoption of HKAS 12 (Amendment) ‘Income
taxes — Deferred tax: recovery of underlying assets’
(Continued)

The Group has early adopted this amendment retrospectively for the
financial year ended 30 April 2012. As required by the amendment,
the Group has re-measured the deferred tax relating to the investment
property according to the tax consequence on the presumption that it
is recovered entirely by sale retrospectively. The early adoption of this
amendment did not result in any significant financial impact to the
Group for the years ended 30 April 2012 and before.

New/revised HKFRSs not adopted

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued the following new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended 30 April

2012 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS

Amendments to HKFRS
Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12
HKFRS 13
Amendments to HKAS 1
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11
and HKFRS 12 (Amendments)

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)
HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)

Amendments to HKAS 32
HK(IFRIC) - Int 20

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle?

Government Loans
Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets'
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial

Assets and Financial Liahilities?
Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS

9 and Transition Disclosures®

Financial Instruments®

Consolidated Financial Statements?

Joint Arrangements?

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities®

Fair Value Measurement?

Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Financial Statement, Joint Arrangements
and Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities:
Transition Guidance?

Employee Benefits?

Separate Financial Statements?
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures®
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities®

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine?

FERFTE] RS BB M BREE
Al ([ERMBHREER ) (&

ERIRNEBEERIE 125 (15
FTAR)[Fris# — ELHIE - e
HHEEE (&

AEBECDRARALBRETEHEBEE—FT
——FHA=THLEMBRFEZEHER -
HAMERTAFTARE @ RIBBBHE BN
B EMEMEGH < RBER - AEED
EPEHNTERRRENEZELREA -
AEERBEE—T——FMA=FTHILF
JE R 2 AR R BRI RIS 7T 3 S S A A
ERMBEE -

1R ERAN 2 F AT~ AR 1G] B BRY
BHERER

BENSYBHRRTERAY - FESHAED
AEEBRHREBEE-_T——FMA=1A8
LR 2 R A R B R U 35 B S SRR BR A
ZIATEE] RARIERT R ~ (E7] 2 fg -
BRMBREEA 2] BRMHREEN-_TTNEE
R EHRFERE

BRIBEREEA 2] BFER?

BRMEREEAET BB - 2Ry HaE
2B BE-hENBRERMER

fE?

BRMHREER R0 BRMBRSEN AR
REEMHREEN REHREEHE
Eykivd |

BB ER R0 HHIR

BRHHREEAE 0% GRiHER

BRMBEREEAE S KALH

BRMBEREEAE R BENER B

BRUBREEAE S AV{EE

SRR ] A 2EARERR 251"

BRUBREERENE BE  GAMBER ARRHREE
MRASENSRRAENE NAtERED: BREE

SERIF 5 (1) 4
BROH 9% R
(ZF-——FEET)
eEEREI BUHHHRR
(ZF——54ET)
eERREI RBERARA LR IER

(Z3——FEE7)
B ElEN R 2]
&k (ERyERL 2R
- REENHR

RENFAERIBAR
) BRELEREARAA

mEp>



Vongroup Limited * Annual Report 2012

3. Application of new and revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New/revised HKFRSs not adopted (Continued)

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.
& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these new and revised HKFRSs is expected to be in the
period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption
of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results
of operations and financial position.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 increase the disclosure requirements for
transactions involving transfers of financial assets. These amendments
are intended to provide greater transparency around risk exposures
when a financial asset is transferred but the transferor retains some
level of continuing exposure in the asset. The amendments also
require disclosures where transfers of financial assets are not evenly
distributed throughout the period.

The directors anticipate that the application of the amendments
to HKFRS 7 will affect the Group’s disclosures regarding transfers of
financial assets in the future.

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application issues relating
to the offsetting requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify
the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off”
and “simultaneous realisation and settlement”. The amendments
to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities require entities to disclose information about rights of offset
and related arrangements (such as collateral posting requirements) for
financial instruments under an enforceable master netting agreement
or similar arrangement. The amended offsetting disclosures are
required for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and
interim periods within those annual periods. The disclosures should
also be provided retrospectively for all comparative periods. However,
the amendments to HKAS 32 are not effective until annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014, with retrospective application
required.

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition.
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3. Application of new and revised Hong Kong 3. ERAHIIRKEIIEBMKEREE
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) Al ((EBMBREER ] (&)
(Continued)

New/revised HKFRSs not adopted (Continued) 18 KRR 2 FTET RS 5T & BB
BHEER (2)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows: BB TISREERNFo% 2 T B E K40
T

HKFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent reporting periods. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair values at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9,
entities may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend
income generally recognised in profit or loss.

The most significant effect of HKFRS 9 regarding the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities relates to the
presentation of changes in the fair value of a financial liability
(designated as at fair value through profit or loss) attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability. Specifically, under
HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities that are designated as at fair
value through profit or loss, the amount of change in the fair
value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in
the credit risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes
in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are
not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Previously, under
HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as at fair value through profit or loss
was presented in profit or loss.
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3. Application of new and revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New/revised HKFRSs not adopted (Continued)

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the future
may have significant impact on amounts reported in respect of the
Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities. Regarding the Group’s
financial assets, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate
of that effect until a detailed review has been completed. Changes in
credit risk of financial liabilities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss are disclosed in note 43.

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued, including HKFRS
10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) and HKAS 28 (as
revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are described below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements that deal with consolidated financial statements
and HK (SIQ)-Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. HKFRS
10 includes a new definition of control that contains three elements:
(a) power over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its
power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.
Extensive guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to deal with complex
scenarios.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and HK (SIC)-
Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary Contributions by
Venturers. HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint arrangement of which
two or more parties have joint control should be classified. Under
HKFRS 11, joint arrangements are classified as joint operations or joint
ventures, depending on the rights and obligations of the parties to the
arrangements. In contrast, under HKAS 31, there are three types of
joint arrangements: jointly controlled entities, jointly controlled assets
and jointly controlled operations.
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3. Application of new and revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New/revised HKFRSs not adopted (Continued)

In addition, joint ventures under HKFRS 11 are required to be
accounted for using the equity method of accounting, whereas jointly
controlled entities under HKAS 31 can be accounted for using the
equity method of accounting or proportionate accounting.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that
have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/
or unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than those in the
current standards.

These five standards are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013. Earlier application is permitted provided that all
of these five standards are applied early at the same time.

The directors anticipate that these five standards will be adopted in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual period
beginning 1 January 2013. The application of these five standards
may have significant impact on amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements. The application of HKFRS 10 may result in the
Group no longer consolidating some of its investees, and consolidating
investees that were not previously consolidated (e.g. the Group’s
investment in associates may become the Group’s subsidiaries based
on the new definition of control and the related guidance in HKFRS
10). In addition, the application of HKFRS 11 may result in changes
in the accounting of the Group’s jointly controlled entities that are
currently accounted for using proportionate consolidation. Under
HKFRS 11, those jointly controlled entities will be classified as a joint
operation or joint venture, depending on the rights and obligations of
the parties to the joint arrangement. However, the directors have not
yet performed a detailed analysis of the impact of the application of
these Standards and hence have not yet quantified the extent of the
impact.
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3. Application of new and revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New/revised HKFRSs not adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements. The
Standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring
fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value measurements.
The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both financial instrument
items and non-financial instrument items for which other HKFRSs
require or permit fair value measurements and disclosures about
fair value measurements, except in specified circumstances. In
general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive
than those in the current standards. For example, quantitative and
qualitative disclosures based on the three-level fair value hierarchy
currently required for financial instruments only under HKFRS 7
Financial Instruments: Disclosures will be extended by HKFRS 13 to
cover all assets and liabilities within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 13 will be adopted in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the annual period beginning
1 January 2013 and that the application of the new Standard may
affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements
and result in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.

The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in either a single statement or in
two separate but consecutive statements. However, the amendments
to HKAS 1 require additional disclosures to be made in the other
comprehensive income section such that items of other comprehensive
income are grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items that may be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are
met. Income tax on items of other comprehensive income is required
to be allocated on the same basis.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The presentation of items of
other comprehensive income will be modified accordingly when the
amendments are applied in the future accounting periods.
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4. Segment information

Operating segments are identified on the basis of internal reports
which provide information about components of the Group. This
information is reported to and reviewed by the chief operating decision
maker (‘CODM”), senior executive management, for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment.

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are organised
by a mixture of both business lines (products and services) and
geography, in a manner consistent with the way in which information
are reported internally to the Company’s board of directors and the
CODM for the purposes of resources allocation and performance
assessment. The Group has presented the segment information by
the following categories. These segments are managed separately. No
operating segments have been aggregated.

1. Financial services: Consumer finance, moneylending,
other financial/business services
and related activities

2. Securities: Securities and related activities

3. Property: Real property and related activities

4. Technology & Media: Technology & media and related
activities

5, Food & Beverage: Catering services, other food &

beverage businesses and related
activities

(a) Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities

For the purpose of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Group’s CODM monitors
the revenue, results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise
from the depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to
those segments. Head office and corporate expenses are not
allocated to individual segments.

Segment assets principally comprise all tangible assets and
intangible assets directly attributable to each segment. Segment
liabilities include trade creditors, accruals and deposits received
and tax payables attributable to each segments and finance lease
payable and bank borrowings managed directly by the segments.

4. DEER

REDBINIEARRE 2 EETIAR
Bl - T AER RS IR A KB & AERE D
ZER c RFERARTBEERERE
([EBRERRE]) aMITHEREAR
2 WHEFRHN  UEDERERAK
BaHh 2R -

AREBBROMEREER - o EERIA
xR (EmMRE) MMtEAEa D
B DEAARAEFTERIELER
REFLAMBERERZTA B0 A
EDBRERLRXRFEZRE - A&H
ERNTHEAIZFDEER - IbFEDHE
TVBER  WEAHAERLEDH -

1. =RRY%: EEERE  E-
Hih et %%
R M AR R A B

2. &FH: & MEERY

3. ME FHEREREEE)

4. BATREREE : B M ERAE A KR AR R
AE

5. B RERERRS - Hfb
BERERLARE
EJ

(a) 7HE Wiz F& BEREE

AHE D BRAMES BRI D EE
BRME  AEREZ TBEERKE
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BEEEBR SRS B EBMNEN
et ERRE BIRS AR BN BIIA -
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DEER (&)

4. Segment information (Continued) 4.

(a) Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities

(Continued)

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results

from operations by reportable segments.

(%8

(a) BBz RAE > RERRME

DI s K F e

TREBATHRDBEOMAEE 2 W

Segment revenue/(loss)

aERE S (BE)

Segment profit/(loss)
¥R (E8)

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

30/4/2012 30/4/2011 30/4/2012 30/4/2011

BZE BHE BZE BH=E

—B--F —T—F =%-—=% _T——F

MA=+H WA=+H M™A=+H WA=+H

LEE IEFE LHEE IEFE

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAET FET FHET

Financial services T BARTS 1,935 2,035 258 702

Securities B (11,312) 8,279 (11,939) 7,406

Property Y/ 2,118 1,114 5,024 7,574

Technology & Media i M gt g8 312 624 (246) (5,005)

Food & Beverage B 34,597 40,060 630 (3,308)

Total et 27,650 52,112 (6,273) 7,369
Unallocated items: RAOMIER :

Other revenue Hiplgzs 19,759 4305

Administrative and other TTER R HA

operating expense e (52,194) (21,726)

Finance costs EUp SN (510) 271)
Share of (loss)/profit of a FEAG FE R

jointly-controlled entity BT (EE),ORA (1,933) 40

Loss before taxation M F BT ES 18 (41,151) (10,283)

Income tax FT1S i (69) (280)

Loss for the year REEEIE (41,220) (10,563)
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4. DEER (F)

4. Segment information (Continued)

(a) Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities (a) Bz - ¥4 ZERERE

(Continued)
Segment revenues and results (Continued)

Segment revenue from financial services, property, technology &
media and food & beverage represents revenue generated from
external customers. Segment revenue from securities represents
revenue/(loss) generated from trading of listed equity securities.
There were no inter-segment sales in the current year (2011: Nil).

The accounting policies of the operating segments are same as the
Group’s accounting policies. Segment profit/(loss) represents the
profit/(loss) earned by each segment without allocation of share
of (loss)/profit of a jointly-controlled entity, central administration
costs including directors’ salaries, other revenue, other gain,
administrative and other operating expenses and finance costs.
This is the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance.

(4

DIz R FE ()

Yl

R EARRS - P - BT RAREEIA
RERZDBWBIEIREFEELZ
Wik o KEBHFZDBKREEER
mRAFSFELEZRE (BE) - &
FEREL>BMEE (ZF——F:
&) e

REDBZ BT BREANKE 2G5
BERARR - DEEF(BB) B5 5
BARERZEN,(BE)  MBAD
FCrEbHEERIER (B58), 8f -
Ex%e Hiblas  H&F - 17
T Ko ELAth A8 42 B SUA R B B R AN S o
RITERAAR o It B3 E TR BC M st i
DEREMAEIELERREZRLZ

5 -
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* Include interest in a jointly-controlled entity

4. Segment information (Continued) 4. DPEER (&)
(a) Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities (a) 7z - ¥4 ZEREE
(Continued) (#&
Segment assets and liabilities SHEEERAE
2012 2011
—E-——F —T——1F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TATT
Segment assets PEEE
Financial services & R AR 41,744 44,038
Securities B 30,043 83,489
Property IS 136,931 105,964
Technology & Media il &z 1 s 391 703
Food & Beverage® 2N 15,816 21,574
Total segment assets BOREE 224,925 255,768
Unallocated property, plant and equipment RO - HE MR E 18,669 3,651
Unallocated available-for-sale investments KO B R/t HERE 16,882 21,834
Unallocated cash and cash equivalents OB NIRESEEIER 95,437 132,509
Unallocated derivative financial instrument ROBITAEMFETE 16,159 -
Unallocated corporate assets AOMEEEE 12,122 13,873
Consolidated assets HEEE 384,194 427,635
Segment liabilities DHEEE
Financial services & R AR TS 811 9,838
Securities B - -
Property IS 40,309 26,872
Technology & Media g K 4% 5 - =
Food & Beverage Z8R 30,097 32,370
Total segment liabilities woBEaE 71,217 69,080
Unallocated liabilities AP BE 4,735 9,628
Consolidated liabilities SEeEaE 75,952 78,708

* BRENARZESEE

2 -
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4. Segment information (Continued)

(a) Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities

(Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and

allocating resources between segments:

— segment assets exclude property, plant and equipment,

available-for-sale investments, cash and cash equivalents,

derivative financial instrument and other

unallocated

corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group

basis.

— segment liabilities exclude accruals and deposit received,

bank borrowings and other unallocated corporate liabilities

as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Other segment information

DEER (&)

(a) D E Wz~ FE > BERBRE
(#&)

SEEEREE (B)

RERSRRARRARHARER
i -

- DHREETBEREYE BERR
B AHEERE RekES
FEER TTAEMBIA UK
HEARDEREEEE  REARL
FEERA—HEEE -

- NBRAEETEREAFARD K
we |ROEEREMASRE
%ELE E.ﬁﬂﬂ:ﬁr,\t wﬁ%g
—HEE -

E 7 AR

Additions to Depreciation and

non-current assets amortisation

BEFRBEE EREH
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
30/4/2012 30/4/2011  30/4/2012 30/4/2011
BZE BHE BZ H=E
—B--F T F =%-—=F _T——F
MA=+H WA=+H MA=+H WA=+H

B LEFE IHFEE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHAT FERT FHET

Segment assets PEEE
Financial services & ml AR 7S - = 102 18
Securities 5 - - - -
Property ES 32,355 29,008 - 6
Technology & Media B K i a8 - = 36 121
Food & Beverage B8R 565 100 509 868
Unallocated RO 16,237 31 1,152 964
Total st 49,157 29,139 1,799 1,977
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4. Segment information (Continued)

(b) Geographical information

(c)

5. Turnover, other revenue and other gains

The Group’s operations are carried out in Hong Kong and PRC.
Financial services, technology & media businesses and food
& beverage operations are carried out in Hong Kong and PRC.
Property businesses are carried out mainly in Hong Kong.

The following is an analysis of geographical location of (i) the
Group’s revenue/(loss) and (ii) the Group’s non-current assets as
specified below. The geographical location of Group’s revenue
refers to the location at which the services were received
and receivable or the services were provided or the goods
delivered. The Group’s non-current assets include property,
plant and equipment, investment properties, lease premium
for land, deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment and investment properties, goodwill, available-
for-sale investments and interest in a jointly-controlled entity.
The geographical locations of property, plant and equipment,
investment properties, lease premium for land and deposits paid
for acquisition of property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and available-for-sale investments are based on the
physical location of the asset under consideration. In the case of
goodwill, it is based on the location of the operation to which
these intangibles are allocated. In the case of interests in a jointly-
controlled entity, it is based on the location of operations of such
jointly-controlled entity.

4. DEER (&)
(b) #EE

AEBZEENEBERTEET - £
BURTS - BT IR R BEARBERE
BIIRBRRTBETT - WERHE
BERBEET -

AT AT SEE 2 e,/ (&
B) RiyAEEIFRBEEZFTEM
DT o AN B U E P 1S B R 3
A URER AR #S - Sk ER ARG K A E S
ZiE - ARBEZIERBEEBIREY)
X BEREE WEME - LM
T BREYE  BEMREMRE
MERNZS  BE - AHEERE
AR F RGBS 2w o W%
BENEE - REME - LivHE
AR EIRE - BB M&EE - W&
MERAIEHEREMNIZS 2
WIHEREEAS 2 BERMEM
EeoREmEMmMs  DEREEVEE
ESBME 2 2B ETE - SR
RIEHIERE 2 #mim s @ B AZER
BB RS EEATE 2 B o

ue/(loss) Segment non-current assets

i (B8 PEHFRBEE
Year ended Year ended At At
30/4/2012 30/4/2011 30/4/2012 30/4/2011

BE BE

—E--fF —ZT——F i i
mA=+R WA=tH ZB--F =—T——F
LEEE 5% WA=+HA WmA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT THET THERT FET
Hong Kong (country of domicile) B8 (&) (7,369) 15,686 142,820 129,773
PRC ] 35,019 36,426 20,238 13,981
Total Bt 27,650 52,112 163,058 143,754

Information about major customers

The Group has a very wide customer base, no single customer
contributed more than 10% of the Group’s revenue for each of the
years ended 30 April 2011 and 2012.

The Group are principally engaged in financial services businesses,
securities businesses, property businesses, technology & media
businesses and food & beverage businesses.

() BEHETEEFZEH

AEEEIERRAZEFE  MAM
EmE —REERASEHE T ——
FER_E——FPNA=1THILFES
F 7 Wz 1B10% ©

5. EXE - HitimREMER

AEBTERESRREEL  EFF
1% MERT - B RERRE R ARER

ES K
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5. Turnover, other revenue and other gains 5. EXH - HftthmkHEMEA
(Continued) (#&
Turnover represents income from financial services businesses, EXBREAFTEESRREER - BHE
securities businesses, property businesses, technology & media %~ WIEFER « BT R ER A KRB
businesses and food & beverage businesses received or receivable SETSUER B AT IRCER 2 LA ©

during the year.

The Group’s turnover, other revenue and other gains for the year arose AEERFEE 7 B3R - Hitnlas REAM
from the following activities: ER TR E A TN EBEE
Group
REM
2012 2011
—B-=F —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FHET
Turnover B
Income from food & beverage businesses BRETE 2 WA 34,597 40,060
Income from technology & media businesses — #1i7 K L 275 2 W A 312 624
Net (loss)/gain on equity investments BAFENAERYRZES
at fair value through profit or loss ‘&2 (BR),/ W=FE (11,312 8,279
Financial services income TR R UA 1,649 1,674
Sale of forfeited collateral o E S U IR I T 286 361
Gross rental income from investment REREYE 2 BEE
properties W A 2,118 1,114
27,650 52,112
Other revenue H {3
Bank interest income, being total interest RATH B A
income on financial assets not at fair (B3R R ELAE SR
value through profit or loss AT B 2 FEF BIA) 330 647
Dividend income A% 2 WA 672 951
Sundry income FETE U A 213 168
1,215 1,766
Other gains Hib 2R

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
Fair value gain on derivative financial

instrument 16,159 -

Net gain on disposal of property, HEME R NREEY
plant and equipment W 5B 3,091 577
Written back of accruals 58 FE 5T RIR 3,600 =
22,850 4,781

HE—REMNE QR Zz s - 4,204

TTEMBTAZ A AN
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6. Loss from operations

The Group’s loss from operations is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

6. REEE

AEBEZEBREIENRGEA) T

KIH :
2012 2011
—E-—-F —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cost of inventories consumed (note 21(b)) FOHFETF B (FiFE21(b)) 13,972 14,347
Cost of forfeited collaterals sold (note 21(b)) & E R IR T 2 B AR
(FHt3E21(b)) 254 295
14,226 14,642
Staff costs (including directors’ BEIRA (BIEEEME
emoluments — note 9): — B$539) -
Wages and salaries IERHS 18,844 17,432
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIRES 2 66 139
18,910 17,571
Auditor’s remuneration* ZEREM B £ * 712 623
Depreciation and amortisation ITE R 1,799 1,977
Net gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BERREZ
plant and equipment W= E (3,091) (577)
Loss on disposal of investment properties* HEKEYE 2 Fig* 182 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HERB AR 2 W - (4,204)
Exchange loss, net* P X B IR F R 410 1,232
Operating lease rentals KERLMER 5,020 7,557
Research and development costs* i % K% G B AR AR * - 5,000
Rental income from investment properties REME 2 B WA E &
less direct outgoings of HK$102,000 32 H102,00078 7T
(2011: HK$70,000) (ZZF——%F : 70,0005 7T) (2,016) (1,044)
Dividend income from listed securities ERESHFZREWKA (672) (951)
Impairment loss on other receivable (note 24)*  H {th f& Ut BR R B 5 18
(Bg5E24) * 220 2,500
Impairment loss on goodwill* EREEE* 2,776 -
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AEHERE ZRERBE*
investments*® 19,382 -
Fair value gain on derivative financial PTESE TR 2 N ERE
instrument (16,159) -

*  Theitem is included in other expenses

* WIHBEBRARMES °




ENEEERA A F #2012 81

7. Finance costs 7. BAEERRAR
Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E--F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Bank overdraft interest RITEZFE - 3
Interest on bank borrowings RITEER S 508 264
Interest on finance lease BEROF S 2 4
Total interest expense on financial liabilities JEIR AT EAIBEFIEE 2
not at fair value through profit or loss P aE s BN EX T 510 271
8. Income tax 8. FiiEH
(a) The taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) ZREEE K ZA2BIEE
comprehensive income represents:
Group
rEE
2012 2011
—R--F _—T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Current tax BNHATE 18
PRC Enterprise Income Tax R TS 47 280
Under-provision in prior year BEFERENE
Hong Kong Profits Tax ERENEH 22 -

Income tax for the year KREZ TS 69 280
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FriE® (&

8. Income tax (Continued) 8.

(a) HFEEE Kz A2 HIEIE -

(a) The taxation in the consolidated statement of

Income tax for the year can be reconciled to the loss before

==
=1

comprehensive income represents: (Continued) (48

REEFEHEERA 2 AMEEN

taxation per the consolidated statement of comprehensive BRELATBE LR ¢
income as follows:
2012 2011
—E-C=fF —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Loss before taxation BRIERTEE (41,151) (10,283)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, RE B E AR AR R
calculated at the rate applicable to Aiam Al REFFTE @ B
profits in the tax jurisdictions concerned Az B2&HIER (6,888) (2,010)
Income not subject to taxation LG ON (14,190) (3,483)
Expenses not deductible for AR 2 A
taxation purposes 11,531 2,664
Tax losses not yet recognised i A TETR 2 i I8 18 10,838 3,644
Tax effect of deductible temporary RIEERAHIREREZRE 2
differences not recognised i (1,244) (535)
Under-provision in prior year BEFERETR 22 =
Tax charge MIES H 69 280

No provision for profits tax in the Cayman Islands, British Virgin
Islands (“BVI”) and Hong Kong has been made as the Group has
no assessable tax income for the year in these jurisdictions (2011:

Nil).

The provision for PRC enterprise income tax is calculated at the
standard rate of 25% on the estimated assessable income for the
year as determined in accordance with the relevant income tax

rules and regulations of the PRC.

AEERFAYECHESRE - X8
REEE (RBREZEE] REE
SREUE I ERRTLURA - L3 B b a%

EFRERBEZMEHIELHEE (=T
——F |-

PERMEMERORET BRREME
AR R FOR R FTEE T 2 1R R R 25% -
BERN AT ERTHUAGT E B -
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8. Income tax (Continued) 8. Fii8% (&)
(b) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (b) RéxE BN I T2 HERE -
financial position represents:
Group
rEE
2012 2011
—B--F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
At beginning of the year F1 21,414 20,247
Provision for the year IR E A
— PRC enterprise income tax — RS 47 280
Taxation paid [RECCOEE (47) (181)
Exchange adjustment (ERTIEEES 687 1,068
At end of the year FE 22,101 21,414
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MBMEMS AW -

PRC enterprise income tax R TSR 22,101 21,414
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9. Directors’ and five highest paid individuals’ 9. EERIANFMES AL ZHMH
remuneration
(a) The details of emoluments of every director are (a) ZEBM2HEITUT -

shown below:

Year ended 30 April 2012
BE-Z-“FNAZ+ALFE
Basic salaries,
allowances  Retirement

and other benefits

benefits scheme

EARHE > contributions
Fees EHR EBiRE Total
Name of Director EEnE ok H3EF AR ‘st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

TERT FERT FET FET

Executive directors HITES
Vong Tat leong, David =iES (1THER)

(Chief Executive Officer) 5,400 600 - 6,000
Xu Siping fRETE 500 - - 500
Independent non-executive BAFHTES

directors
Fung Ka Keung, David %552 08 100 - - 100
Lam Lee G. ER 150 - - 150
Wong Man Ngar, Edna T 100 - - 100

6,250 600 - 6,850
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9. Directors’ and five highest paid individuals’ 9. EERANFMES AL ZHMH
remuneration (Continued) (%)
(a) The details of emoluments of every director are (a) BEFMEFESTUT -
shown below: (Continued) (%)

Year ended 30 April 2011
BE_ZT——FMA=THILFE

Basic salaries,

allowances Retirement
and other benefits
benefits scheme
HAH% +  contributions
Fees E R Rk Total
Name of Director MY ik EEH FTEIfR HE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET TAET TAT
Executive directors HITES
Vong Tat leong, David BiEG (1THER)

(Chief Executive Officer) 3,000 850 - 3,850
Xu Siping fRETF 500 - - 500
Independent non-executive BUEHTES

directors
Fung Ka Keung, David 5508 100 = = 100
Lam Lee G. PR 150 - - 150
Wong Man Ngar, Edna TXH 100 - - 100

3,850 850 = 4,700




86

Vongroup Limited * Annual Report 2012

9. Directors’ and five highest paid individuals’
remuneration (Continued)

EERAUHFMRS A L 2HMH
(%)

(b) Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,

one (2011: one) was director of the Company whose emoluments
are included in the disclosures in note 9(i) above. The emoluments
of the remaining four (2011: four) individuals were as follows:

) FEBERFMESALN — 5

ST——F —%) AEATES
H SR L B SRR - 4T mE
ST ) AL BE S
o -

2012 2011

—B-—F —T——%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

TET FAETT

Salaries and other benefits e M E A E F 2,846 2,712
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIRES 2R 24 24
2,870 2,736

The number of the four (2011: four) highest paid individuals
whose remuneration fall within the following bands are as
follows:

FMNFTIEE NG (ZF——
FEB) FMESALARBNAT

2012 2011
—E——F —F——fF
Nil — HK$1,000,000 = %1,000,000785 7T 4 4

During the year, no emoluments were paid to the five highest
paid individuals (including directors and other employees) as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office.

RAFEAR - YEARUFHMESA
T (BREFREMESR) ASEMRH
& ERMAXTKERMARZ RS
S RRERRE(E
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10. Loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company

The consolidated loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company for the year dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company is loss of HK$99,955,000 (2011: loss of HK$3,581,000).

11.Dividend

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
year ended 30 April 2012 (2011: Nil).

12.Loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share for the year is based on the
loss attributable to owners of the Company of HK$41,220,000 (2011:
HK$7,674,000) and the weighted average number of 5,859,860,900
(2011: 5,859,860,900) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share is equal to basic loss per share as there were no
dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence in both years presented.

10. AR REBABERFERBR

RARNBRERREE 2 ANA B A AJE
1 AN F Z 4R A E 18 /5 85 1899,955,00078 JT
—Z——4F : [§5183,581,000/87T) °

1. KRR

EEVITEBRNBE_T——_FN0A
=TREFEZRE (ZF——%F: £)-

12. BREE

REEERERNBEDRAQNREER A
J& 1 /&5 #841,220,0008 T (=& — — F ¢
7,674,000/ 7T) MFNE BT E B2 N
T ¥ 15 £15,859,860,9000% (— & — — 4F :
5,859,860,900% ) 5t & -

HRMEZRFEOEECHEETE R
BERE B IRAENERENEE
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13.Property, plant and equipment 13. 0% - BEREE
Leasehold
land and Furniture,
huildings held fixtures Utensils
for own use Leasehold and Motor and
carried at cost  improvements  equipment vehicles supplies Total
DY
SR
BERZEE HE G 2B #AR
1HERF  NREE k&fE RE ftER @3t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
TATL Thx Thx Thx Thx Thx
Cost A
At 1 May 2010 RZE-ZERA—H 8133 37,838 9,779 5,162 11,075 71987
Additions NE = 39 66 - 40 145
Disposals e (3,561) 32,640) (8,550) (969) (10,636) (56,356)
Disposal of a subsidiary HENBAT - - 23) - = 23
Exchange adjustment 5 % - 295 56 30 28 409
At30 April 2011 and 1 May 2011 R=Z2——FWA=+A
kZE——F1A-H 4572 5532 1328 4223 507 16,162
Additions NE 13,936 9 303 361 36 14,735
Transfer from deposit paid for Lﬁéﬁ BENE BER
acquisition of RETMZES
property, plant and equipment 1,990 53 4 - - 2,067
Disposals e (4572 (14) (20) (204) = (4.810)
Exchange adjustment B i AR - 178 3 5 17 232
At 30 April 2012 RZE-—4NA=+H 15,926 5,848 1,667 4,385 560 28,386
Accumulated depreciation and ZRAERREFSE
impairment losses
At 1 May 2010 R=E-ZFR[—H 1113 35,424 9,025 1,676 10,897 58135
Charge for the year REEYH 129 740 196 844 36 1045
Written back on disposals HERED (668) (31.929) (8,316) (422) (10,543) (51.878)
Written back through disposal of BRHENBARAE
asubsidiary - - 20) - - 20)
Exchange adjustment 5 - 24 40 15 3 302
At 30 April 2011 and 1 May 2011 RZE——EMmA=+H
k=2—%18-H 574 4459 925 2113 413 8,484
Charge for the year REESH 392 295 182 858 39 1,766
Written back on disposals HERBRD (597) 2 (1) (187) - (797)
Exchange adjustment LS - 146 2% 5 14 191
At 30 April 2012 RZZF-_FNA=+A 369 4,898 1,122 2,789 466 9,644
Net carrying amount REFE
At30 April 2011 RZF——FMA=TH 3,998 1073 403 2,110 9 7,678
At 30 April 2012 RZE——FNA=1AH 15,557 950 545 1,596 9% 18,742
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13. M3 - BERRE (&)

AEBREFHEOFE 2 AR ER
tFERzHEEL W MEF 2 REES TN

13.Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The carrying amount of the Group’s leasehold land and buildings held
for own use carried at cost, which is held under medium term lease,

is analysed as follows: T
2012 2011
—E—C—F —FT—%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHER THETT
Situated in: frps -
Hong Kong BB 15,557 3,998

14.Lease premium for land 14. L&

AEEN LS 2 RS ERNEEED
MREEBEEITAT

The Group’s interests in lease premium for land represent prepaid
operating lease payments and their carrying amount are analysed as

follows:
Group
REE
2012 2011
—E——fF —E2——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Cost 2R
Brought forward 7 1,602 1,522
Exchange adjustment b 5 52 80
Carried forward 45 1,654 1,602
Accumulated amortisation and EEBEREESE
impairment loss
Brought forward HH 155 116
Amortisation for the year AN S 33 32
Exchange adjustment bE 5, 53 B 6 7
Carried forward FEL 194 155
Net carrying amount BREFE 1,460 1,447
Leases of not less than 10 years but less than BRI AR BES
50 years which is held under medium NLR10FETB50F 2
term lease, held in PRC A 1,460 1,447
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MMEMS 2DTWAT -
Current assets MENEE 34 33
Non-current assets EMBEE 1,426 1,414
1,460 1,447
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15. Investment properties 15. REY =
Group
REE
2012 2011
—EB-=-F —FT—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Balance at beginning of year T 2 E8R 99,720 63,940
Additions NE
— transfer from deposit paid for acquisition —EEABEYE
of property, plant and equipment and B M A R 18 &
investment properties (note 19) I ES AN
(BfF5E19) 2,763 1,600
— acquisitions — UhE 16,981 12,394
— capitalised subsequent expenditure — A EFTER 237 -
— through acquisition of a subsidiary (note 37) — BB R — M E A A
(FI5E37) 12,374 15,000
32,355 28,994
Disposals mE (16,170) =
Increase in fair value NEEZN 3,636 6,786
Balance at end of year FIK 2 119,541 99,720
Amounts recognised in profit and loss for investment properties TIEEMENERER &5
2012 2011
—E—C—F —ET——%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Rental income e WA 2,118 1,114
Direct operating expenses from property that EEESWAZYE L
generated rental income BEERELEHRX (68) (67)
Direct operating expenses from property that TEEESWRAZYEZ
did not generated rental income BEEEERAX (34) (3)
2,016 1,044
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15.Investment properties (Continued)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 30 April 2012
have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on that
date by Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified professional
valuer not connected with the Group. Asset Appraisal Limited has
appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the valuation
of similar properties. The valuation, which conforms to Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors Valuation Standards on Properties, was mainly
arrived at by reference to comparable market transactions for similar
properties.

All of the Group’s properties interests held under operating leases to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation purposes are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

Ten investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
lease, further details of which are included in note 40(a) to the

financial statements.

The fair values of investment properties shown above comprises:

15. REWXE (&)

AEEREVENR_T——_FMWA=1H
ZRHETIREEAEE Y EHE BT
EERBEXRMGEMEETEREARAA
ez APTEZ AEES - EENERRE
RARHRERBEXRERRHBUNES
MESERER - ZAETERE SR A6
SemEHELN  YEI22REUME
A BB TSR HER °

AEERBELHOFAARRES R,
HEBEARNBRER G PR ERIGRA
RPEEAGE U BRAREMENIR
AN

TEREMEIREBEEEHOAETE =
77 E—FRHRER M B HRR M EE400)

EXFRREEMEZ ATHERSR

2012 2011
s e
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Land in Hong Kong: REB 2 L

Medium-term lease FREIHE 98,030 89,720

Land outside Hong Kong: RBEBLAINZ £
Medium-term lease FHATRE 21,511 10,000
119,541 99,720
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16.Goodwill 16. &
Group
REE
2012 2011
—g--F —F——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Cost 5%
Brought forward and carried forward PN 11,383 11,383
Accumulated impairment losses ZEREEE
Brought forward 7RI 2,395 2,395
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE 2,776 -
Carried forward e 5,171 2,395
Net carrying value BRERE 6,212 8,988

Impairment test for cash-generating unit containing
goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating unit (“CGU”)
identified according to operating segment as follows:

BEHRZ L2 ELENZBER
ﬁ

BE DD TRELEDEMBH < AE
EReELEN ([ReEESEM) MT :

Group

rEEH
2012 2011
—F-=-F —FT—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FETT

Financial services businesses & R AR TS F 1%

6,212 8,988
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16.Goodwill (Continued)

Impairment test for cash-generating unit containing
goodwill (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on value-in-
use calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using
the estimated growth rate stated below. The growth rate does not
exceed the long-term average growth rate for the business in which
the CGU operates.

Key assumptions for financial services businesses used for value-in-use

16. & (&

BEHECHeELENZHER
# (&)

ReELEMZAIREESEIRIEERE
EfEEE WEFBEERARERER
A MRERERAREZENAEERER
BMRELFHREZMBEEERSY - &
BLFHRZRSRENIZ T X AE 2T
AR RREEHEE - BREXTGBBARS
ELXBUMRERBZRATHBREER -

ERERBEFEZERRBEEH <R

calculations: R -
Group
AEE
2012 2011
—E—= —E=——4F
% %
Growth rate 18 5 2R 12% 12%
Discount rate BLIR = 4% 9%

The weighted average growth rate used is consistent with forecasts
included in industry reports. The discount rate used is pre-tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segment.

Based on the impairment test performed, impairment loss of
HK$2,776,000 is recognised for the year as the recoverable amount
of the CGU is lower than its carrying amount based on value-in-use
calculation (2011: Nil).

The decline in the business relating to financial services in the current
year was in part due to the structural changes of customers’ behaviour
in response to the change in the general economic environment.

FITE PR 2 DA P 1938 & R BA 1T S & P I
BB —B - PIERZRBR R QRT
Al SRREBO B HARR -

RIEFTHETT 2BERH - AFERER 2R
BEB1ER2,7760008 T ARRESEALS
Uz EeEERERTEREETERS
HZERmE (CT——F : #) -

BWEREREZ EBRAFRELD - Hep
2 REREF 2 TR EBEAERES
T IR AR
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17.Investments in subsidiaries and amounts due from 17. RiIB AT 2REREWHE A T
subsidiaries FRIE

(a) REVBAAZRE

(a) Investments in subsidiaries

Company
KA F]
2012 2011
= —F—%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FBT
Unlisted shares, at cost JE TR - LR A 136,072 136,072
Less: Impairment loss recognised in respect B ERRIB AR
of the investments in subsidiaries KEmR L RERE (136,072) (103,982)
- 32,090

As determined by the directors of the Company, as at 30 April
2012, additional impairment loss of HK$32,090,000 was made
for investments in certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of which
the carrying amount was considered as non-recoverable in view
of unsatisfactory operating performance of relevant subsidiaries
due to change in customers’ consumption behaviour (2011:
HK$Nil).

(b) Amounts due from subsidiaries

At 30 April
Less: Impairment loss recognised in respect
of the amounts due from subsidiaries

REUA=+H

The movements in the allowance for amounts due
from subsidiaries during the year is as follows:
At 1 May RAA—H

Impairment loss recognised ERRREEE
At 30 April ROA=+H

As determined by the directors of the Company, in view of
persistently loss making of certain wholly-owned subsidiaries,
additional impairment loss of HK$52,750,000 (2011: HK$Nil) was
recognised for amounts due from subsidiaries to the extent that
the amounts were considered not fully recoverable.

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free
and have no fixed terms of repayment.

BIARBESBIRE » ERNEFZ
HEBITREMEHMSETE2ENE
DR EEEBERNIPE R =T
——FMNA=+HERRBEHBEA
Al ZE (BREEREE AT E)
YEH BEINRE E51832,090,00078 7T (=

T——F : THT) o

(b) FEWFTIE 2 AR

R BB EAHTE AR
TORRER Z REEE

PRI B A FHE
B2 SR

384,400 397,119
(142,251) (89,501)
242,149 307,618
(89,501) (89,501)
(52,750) -
(142,251) (89,501)

WA RRESRIRE  ARETE
EWNBRARRBRIER  MHE
W B /&8 A &) SR IE FE SR RE AN B & 18
52,750,000 ST (ZZF — —F : TF
T0) AR AT R 2 ERE K EE A
PR o

FEW B ARSI AEER - R K
EETENY -
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17. R B AR 2 REREWHE QT
FIE (&)

17.Investments in subsidiaries and amounts due from
subsidiaries (Continued)

TREFINEZBZEARTERE  EEX

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which

principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group: BEZHBEARZFE
Place of
incorporation/  Nominal Percentage of equity
registration value of attributable to
and operations  issued the Company
Name ML, share capital NN Principal activities
£ AfMREELE CSRTRAEE REBDL TEXK
Direct Indirect
HE R
E-Rapid Developments Limited BVI Ordinary 100 - Investing holding
EBRIES US$6,950,526 RERR
L ifMk6,950,526 7T
VG Investment Assets Holdings BVI Ordinary US$1 100 - Investment holding
Incorporated (“VGI") RBEIHS EmR1ET REER
Max Wide Finance Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100 - Securities
BmIRARAR BB TERET BHRE
Vongroup Consumer Finance BVI Ordinary US$1 100 - Investment holding
Corporation RERIHE TERIET REER
Honning Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100  Property business
REARAF BB Limk1ET MEE
Golden Throne Holdings Limited BVI Ordinary US$1 - 100 Investment holding
HERXHE  ERRIET REER
Kamboat Chinese Cuisine Company BVI/Hong Kong  Ordinary - 100  Food & beverage
Limited (“KCCC?) HBRELES,/  US$6,950,523 businesses
BB Non-voting deferred BRER
US$101 (note (i))
L iAik6,950,523% T
BEREERTRND
10157 (PFEE())
Win Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10 - 100 Property business
5 ERR0ET MEES
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17. RB AR 2 REREWHE AR

I (&)

17.Investments in subsidiaries and amounts due from
subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of

incorporation/  Nominal Percentage of equity
registration value of attributable to
and operations  issued the Company

Name HMAYL, share capital AT HEL Principal activities
£ dMREEGEY DRTRAEE REBSE TEER
Direct  Indirect
Hiz i3
LRIERREAREEAR PRC Registered capital - 100 Financial services
([de ez ) f RMB10,000,000 businesses
(note (ii)) (P (i) afRARARE TRRBES
10,000,0007T
BEERELA CFY) BRAR PRC Registered capital = 100 Financial services
([FERRE ) f HK$23,000,000 businesses
(note (ii) & (iii) (HT=E(Gi) K iii)) A% 523,000,000/ 7T TR R
Easy Credit Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - 100  Financial services
B HK$100,000 businesses
& if%100,0007% 7T TRRBEES
Centrix Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100  Property business
REEXERAA ) LRRAET MEE
Unitech Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100  Property business
BEEXERATA BB TRRIAT MEZH
Win Harbour Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100  Property business
AEBRAT N EmR1ET MEZ
Champmark Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100  Property business
ZBRERAT ) LmRIET MEET
Allex Limited (“‘Allex”) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100  Property business
BB TmRET MEEH
Mica Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100  Property business
BB TR MER
Twinway Industries Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100  Property business
) LimR1ET MEER
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17.Investments in subsidiaries and amounts due from 17. RMiB AT 2REREWKHE QT

subsidiaries (Continued) MHE (&)
Place of
incorporation/  Nominal Percentage of equity
registration value of attributable to
and operations  issued the Company
Name A A share capital PN Principal activities
= dfkEELY CERTREEE REBDL TEER
Direct  Indirect
BE R
United Luck Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100  Property business
HRBRAR BB Limk1ET MEE
Maxfine Limited (“Maxfine”) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100  Property business
REAERAR ([#E]) BB Limk2BT MEE
New Image Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100  Property business
REISEBRAR BB LmR1BT MEE
Best Profit Global Trading Limited BVI Ordinary US$50,000 - 100 Investment holding
(“Best Profit’) RBRZHS EIEAR50,000% 7T REER

ERRFEZARAR ([E2))

House2buy Properties Limited BVI Ordinary US$1 - 100  Property business
(“House2buy’) RERAES  TERIET MEZER

BEXIMEBRRAR ([EX5))

Jet Victory Corporation Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100 Property business

REBEERAT BB Lmk1ET MEZER

EREEEMBRER DA PRC Registered capital - 100 Food & beverage

(ERE#EM]) 23 HK$8,000,000 businesses
(note (ii) & (iii)) (FI&E(ii) B iii)) A AR 458,000,000 7 EHEDB

Notes: FIE -

(i)  The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends, no rights to attend () ERZEEZEERMHEEZERE  E#D
or vote at general meetings and no rights to receive any surplus assets in a return FERRERREHINE LIRE - UARRIEEEE
of capital in a winding up (other than the nominal amount paid up or credited BWEGREE AR 2 FABHEE (BRIFER
as fully paid on such shares, after the sum of US$100,000,000,000,000 has been 100,000,000,000,0003 JT 7£ /8 B B 75k T A A
distributed to the holders of the ordinary shares of the company in such winding- AIEBRIEE AR - BRERMND 2BEARS
up). BT 2 ERBRIRIN) o

(i) deREm, EEBIEE and FER S FEM are limited liability companies established iy dtFIES - EEBRERERSEMART B
in the PRC. Y2 BRAF e

(iii) Registered as a wholly-foreign owned enterprise under the PRC Law. (i) WIBREVEEFMAIEEERE -
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18.Interest in a jointly-controlled entity 18. RARPEFIER 2R
Details of the jointly-controlled entity are as follows: HEIEH TR ZFFBIT
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of Percentage of
registration and issued and paid EhL
Name of Business operations up capital Ownership Voting Profit  Principal
jointly-controlled entity structure HMRL /MR BERORAR interest power sharing  activity
HEEHERER B8 EEnY RAER hERG RER  EGEN ITEER
LB ENRERBRAF Corporation ~ PRC Registered 50 50 50 Food & beverage
NG i capital businesses
US$500,000 BHEH
R
5000005 7T
The Group’s jointly-controlled entity is a Sino-foreign joint equity NEE 2z EEIEGIERE A MR REKZ
enterprise established in the PRC and is indirectly held by the Group. ZHINEERE - WHASEFEERE -
Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E—_F —F——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT

Share of net assets EIEEEFE - 1,896
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18.Interest in a jointly-controlled entity (Continued) 18. REEEHER 2R (&

Summary financial information of the jointly-controlled entity HtrE LRI EREERE M BEER

extracted from its management account: Bratan s
2012 2011
—E-CF 2%

Equivalent to Equivalent to

HER BER

RMB’000 HK$’000 RMB’000 HK$'000

ARETR Tarx ARETE TET

Non-current assets EREEE - 1 41 49
Current assets MBEE 1,397 1,725 5,676 6,790
Current liabilities MEEE (1,419) (1,752) (2,510) (3,002)
Non-current liabilities E e = (38) (47) (38) (45)
(Capital deficiency)/total equity (BARE4),/ BRER (60) (73) 3,169 3,792
Income A 9,557 11,654 13,920 16,205
Expenses B (12,786) (15,572) (13,890) (16,125)
(Loss)/profit for the year AEE (BB),/ &F (3,229) (3,918) 30 80

19.Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plantand 19. EEYX BERZEURRE

equipment and investment properties MEXF2EE
Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E--F —T——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET THEIT
Balance brought forward APIER 2,224 1,761
Additions NE
— others —Hih 98 2,224
— through acquisition of a subsidiary (note 37(b),(d)) — FiBE B AT
(BFEE37(b) ~ (d)) 2,763 1,600
Transfer to investment properties (note 15) BREREME (FIFF15) (2,763) (1,600)
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (note 13) EEREYE  HEMERE
(BzE13) (2,067) -
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHRBAR - (1,761)

Balance carried forward LB Ak 255 2,224
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20.Available-for-sale investments 20 JHHERE
Group
REH
2012 2011
—E——F —ET——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F& T THT
Unlisted investments: ELEMIEE :
Club memberships, at cost (note (i)) SRR WK
(PR EE()) 1,532 1,532
Unlisted equity investments, at cost ELEMEHEE - KA
(note (i)&(ii)) CBRREG) R (i) 34,732 20,302
Less: Impairment loss recognised B EERBEEE
(note(iii)) (B =i ) (19,382) -
15,350 20,302
16,882 21,834
Notes: BfaE
(i)  As at 30 April 2012, the Group’s available-for-sale investments with net carrying () RZE—Z-FWA=+H r AFE@IFER

amount in aggregate of HK$16,882,000 (2011: HK$21,834,000) were stated at cost
less impairment because they did not have a quoted market price in an active
market and the range of reasonable fair value estimates was so significant that the

directors were of the opinion that their fair value cannot be measured reliably.

HEREIATHE-

16,882,000/ 7T (ZZF——%F : 21,834,0007% 7T.)
ZAREE A ERE DIRKANHRIREA
B AARETENERMSNRE  B8E
AFEGTZHERK - MESRATEA R



ENEFBRAAF2012

101

20.Available-for-sale investments (Continued)

(i)

20. T HERE (&

Unlisted equity investments: (i) FELMHEHEKE :
Carrying
At cost Impairment amount
BRA W SREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2012 —E-C-F THET FTHET THET
Honest Pro (Holdings) Limited (“Honest Pro”) 920 - 920
Tian Da Energy Holdings Limited (“Tian Da”) RAAEEREBGRAR ([RK]) 19,382 (19,382) -
Newport Sterling Investments Limited (“Newport”) 14,430 - 14,430
34,732 (19,382) 15,350
Carrying
At cost Impairment amount
R VERIE] AREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2011 —T——F FHET FET THET
Honest Pro (Holdings) Limited (“Honest Pro”) 920 - 920
Tian Da Energy Holdings Limited (“Tian Da”) AREREEER AR ([RA]) 19,382 = 19,382
20,302 = 20,302

Honest Pro is a company incorporated in BVI with limited liability. The Group has

20% equity interest in ordinary shares in Honest Pro through its subsidiary.

Tian Da is a company incorporated in BVI with limited liability. The Group has

20.54% equity interest in ordinary shares in Tian Da through its subsidiary.

Newport is a company incorporated in BVI with limited liability. The Group has

19.09% equity interest in ordinary shares in Newport through its subsidiary.

The Group does not have any representation on the board of directors or any

equivalent governing body in Honest Pro, Tian Da, or Newport. The directors of

the Group are of opinion that the Group does not exercise significant influence

in Honest Pro, Tian Da, or Newport. The investments are therefore accounted for

under HKAS 39 as “Available-for-sale Financial Assets”.

Honest Pro/& A 5 & jE Z At S it N2 2 B IR
AaE] o ANEEFE B EN B A & MR Honest ProZ
LA A 20%A%E -

AREREBEZESHMA L ZBRAFA
AEEEBEMBARNRAAZ EBERPFHE
20.54%M%  °

Newport B RBE Z B S MK BRA
Al o N5 B3E 3B E T /B A 5l FANewport Z 3@
& AR 35 519.09%A% 4 o

7K £5 [& FAHonest Pro + X K 8iNewportZ & &
FREMNFRAZETEBTIENLEK KK
BrEERA - AR&EE ¥ Honest Pro * KA
Newportli EE R L J] - MR ERBEDAE
FTERIZE3R ARRR (RIS EE ] -
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20.Available-for-sale investments (Continued)

(i)

With respect to the investment in Tian Da through the wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, Vongroup Financial Holdings Corporation ("VFHC"), in accordance
with the share purchase and subscription agreement dated 3 July 2009 and
the shareholders' agreement dated 4 August 2009 and as amended and
supplemented by various supplemental extension letters dated 18 October 2010,
18 April 2011 and 18 October 2011 (the "Tian Da Agreements"), has the right to
elect to terminate the investment in Tian Da if the counterparties to the Tian Da
Agreements (the "Counterparties") do not meet certain eligibility requirements in
respect of the sales order documentation target aggregating not less than RMB600
million as stipulated in the Tian Da Agreements.

As at the Long Stop Date of 18 March 2012 with respect to the supplemental
extension letter dated 18 October 2011 (the "Latest Supplemental Extension
Letter") and date of approval of these financial statements, the Counterparties
had not fulfilled certain conditions those relating to delivering certain sales order
documentation up to the amount as set out in the Tian Da Agreements. The
Company recognised the full impairment of the available-for-sale investment in
Tian Da as at 30 April 2012. VFHC is entitled to receive from the Counterparties the
payment of the entire investment amount paid for the Tian Da Acquisition plus
interest as stipulated in the supplemental extension letter dated 18 October 2010
(the "First Supplemental Extension Letter"). The Company recognised a derivative
financial asset as fully described in note 27.

20. A HERE (F)

(i)

BEFERAEE2ENBATNAAZKRE -
BIEARA—STNFLA=AZRHBER
REGERBBHA-TTNF/N\ANB ZKE
fhaE (KZEBHSRIAZZE—SF+ATN
B —E——F@mA+N\BER=ZE—F+
A+ N\BZ 7 8 sk e aT iz ) (3%
% X K # 1) » Vongroup Financial Holdings
Corporation ([VFHC]) B #EEZEZE R A%
RGEF ([RGEF]) WREHZERKH
BEREEEETEXHEEEETIRAR
#600,000,0007C 2 & B R - BEAIER
RRZIRE °

RZZT——F=A+N\H BEHAE=F——
F4 A )\ B #H75 E HA g ([ 858 6 75 38 AR
) 2 &k B EI R b EZ E M SRk
ZBH RGEFURERZEFARNE
FHETEX rHEmeRE (NZERA G
H) 2ETHE - ARAIR=ZT—=_FWA
= THERRAAZ AMEHERESERE -
VFHCE WM RZ S FE@ER A= —F
F+ATNBZEFTSRESE ((BHHTIT
HpR ) PRt R A AT 1 2 2318 &
SRERFEZFIEH o AR R —EITEN
SEE - SR 27Am -
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21.Inventories/forfeited collateral held for sale 21. BE /HFEHFRBUE RS
(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of (a) ZENBEMRERFIZFE
financial position comprise: B -
Group
rEE
2012 2011
s
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Inventories — food & beverage products 785 — ERREM 7,711 9,678
Forfeited collateral held for sale FEWR IR R 280 217
7,991 9,895
Note: Forfeited collateral held for sale include gold and jewellery. Mzt : FERRIKIEHLBEIEES RIKE o
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories ) BREEEERANA A2 EH
recognised as an expense and included in the WHFENZEESHIEBZ 5
consolidated statement of comprehensive income wE

is as follows:

Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E-=F —T—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHETT
Carrying amount of inventories consumed HEREFEZREE 13,972 14,347
Carrying amount of forfeited collateral sold £ B 108 IO I &
ZEEE 254 295

14,226 14,642
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22.Accounts receivable 22, FEURBRRX
Group
AEE
2012 2011
—E——F —ET——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THT
Accounts receivable JEUL BR TR 471 489
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B RIREAE - -
471 489
The general credit terms granted by the Group to its customers range AEEGTEHERP 2 —REEH/IZE
from 30 to 90 days. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its 908 o 7N & B ¥ R (2 48 FE AR A 15 R
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by e - MR EEETHE
senior management. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are Mo AEBEEEBRR2E—TFHFBHR
set out in note 43(a)()). B EE43(a)(i) ©
An aging analysis of accounts receivable as at the end of the reporting REEER - BRI Z BRER DT T
period is as follows:
Group
AEE
2012 2011
—E——F —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THT
Within 30 days 308 A 160 66
31 —90 days 31290H 41 64
91 — 180 days 912180 H 28 93
Over 180 days tBi@180H 242 266

471 489
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22.Accounts receivable (Continued) 22 EWRER (&
The aging analysis of accounts receivable that are not considered to RIEZRFE 2 ERERZER DT
be impaired is as follows: R
Group
HEH
2012 2011
—E-—=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TATT
Neither past due nor impaired I 4 260 H YR (B 201 130
1 to 3 months past due wHEA1 = 3@ A 28 93
Over 3 months to 6 months past due B HAFR A3 E61E A - 45
Over 6 months, but less than 1 year past due mHEERReE A - (B 242 221
270 359
471 489
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide N7 48 360 HE 71 48O (E 2 FE UG BR R 5 BA NP f e
range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default. HE AR TREEZE AR -
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number 2 # H{B W SR E 2 FE R BR i Y ER AR &=
of independent customers that have a good track record with the S EEAERITTHBZEBYEE AR - 1RIE
Group. Based on past experience, management believes that no BAKE  EEEMEHERZEESE
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as HoRmERE  RERAEEEEWESE N
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the B M EERIHAE AT BEURE - AN
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not SEWES N SERISETMAERR -

hold any collateral over these balances.
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23.Moneylending loan receivables 23. B REE R
Group
AEE
2012 2011
—g—-F it S
HK$’000 HK$'000
FB T FHET
Balance brought forward AR AR 14,655 11,973
Loan advanced HNE 13,983 22,020
Repayment during the year FREE (5,685) (19,643)
Exchange adjustment bE 5, 5 & 73 305
Balance carried forward shud 4k o 23,026 14,655
The loan bear interest rate ranging from 5.25% to 50.4% (2011: ZEETW A FER RN T5.25%250.4% (=
5.25% to 50.4%) per annum and are repayable according to the loan T —— & 1 525%%F50.4%) * WAERIEE R
agreement which usually cover periods not more than one year. EEE  E—RHRTNBB—F o
(a) Maturity profile (a) ZIRFIER
The maturity profile of moneylending loan receivables at the end RS BAREWRREE R Z B EER
of the reporting period, based on maturity dates, is as follows: REHB ST ¢
2012 2011
“E-CF “E-F
Unsecured Unsecured
short- short-
Pawn loans  term loans Pawn loans  term loans
receivahle  receivable Total  receivable  receivable Total
BEER EUEER REER  EREER

EhkE  EHER #x  BMRRE RHER 5t
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKSO000  HK$000  HKS000
TEx TRT TRT AT AT AT

Due within 1 month or on demand 1ERNEI IR E S ER 542 - 542 1,600 10,500 12,100
Due after 1 month but within 3 months 1 A% B3(E £ ME|& 446 300 746 335 = 335
Due after 3 months 3fEAREIH 309 21,429 21,738 1,017 1,203 2,220

1,297 21,729 23,026 2,952 11,703 14,655
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23.Moneylending loan receivables (Continued)
(a) Maturity profile (Continued)
As at 30 April 2012, no moneylending loan receivables were

individually determined to be impaired (2011: Nil).

(b) Moneylending loan receivables that are not
considered to be impaired are as follows:

23. EWHBEER (&

2012

“E-CF

Unsecured

short-

Pawn loans  term loans

receivahle

receivable

RERN EURER

(a) E/RIEX (&)

RZT-—_FMA=+H"  HEE

WHEEFWHERNEE ARE (ZF
——F | o
(b) FKIEZEBE.2 BN L EE R
wmr
2011
—E——F
Unsecured
short-
Pawn loans  term loans
Total receivable receivable Total
HEER EREER

EhkE  RHER & EWEE  REER b

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEn TEn TEn TATL TAL TAL

Neither past due nor impaired ERHTERE 683 21,624 22,307 1,793 11,703 13,49
Less than 1 month past due BEEMEA 301 - 301 97 - 97
110 3 months past due AEZ3HA 313 105 418 1,062 - 1,062
1,297 21,729 23,026 2,952 11,703 14,655

Moneylending loan receivables that were neither past due nor fmE B R E 2 R E B T

impaired relate to recognised and creditworthy borrowers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

As at 30 April 2012, the Group held collateral, mainly land and
buildings, gold and jewellery, with value of approximately
HK$1,673,000 (2011: approximately HK$5,415,000) in total over
the pawn loans receivable.

REEBBEZEZANBERA » RELH
I #EHER FCER ©

RZE——FHNA=+H' ~5E
HHEEEREWRRIBREEE RS
#91,673,000/ oL (= T — — F : &
5,415,000%57C) 2 EHm - FEZRLTH
REF  meRIKE -
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24.Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

24. % - AR R EAERFUE

Group Company
AEH P NN

2012 2011 2012 2011
—B—_—F —T——F ZEB-—Z—F —T—F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHE T FHBTT FET FAETT
Prepayments TSR 6,299 2,387 3,000 5
Rental and other deposits HekEmiLe 7,528 10,738 6,200 =
Credit card receivables B REWFRIE 108 202 - =
Loan interest receivables FEWE A B 882 = - -
Staff advances (Note) 8T (fHFE) 90 100 - =
Other receivables H b fE U kT8 5,344 3,734 - =
Less: Impairment B ORE (2,720) (2,500) - —
Other receivables, net H it e W IR FE 2,624 1,234 - =
17,531 14,661 9,200 5

Note: The Group’s staff advances represent advances to the non-director employees.

The advances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are repayable in

accordance with the repayment schedules agreed by the staff and the Group.

The movements in the allowance for other receivables during the

year is as follows:

i

AEBEZETRKENIFERRERHE R
Ko WERRAEER RENBREET
RALBIHE 2 EFIREE -

FREMBRRBRBZEFHNT

2012 2011

—E——fF —ET——%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FET

At 1 May REA—H (2,500) -
Impairment loss recognised EERREEE (220) (2,500)
At 30 April R A=+H (2,720) (2,500)

The impairment loss recognised was a provision for the long

outstanding receivable for an individual debtor and this receivable
was not expected to be recovered. The Group did not hold any

collateral or other credit enhancement over this balance.

ERRZREBRSINERNESANK
HIAREEBUSAFHAEE - BRI
TR FEWSRIE A AT U @ o RE BN R FE UL

HESR A TR RSB ERER -
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24.Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 24. 12€  AAERARHBEWRIR
(Continued) (#&
Other receivables that are not impaired: W IERE 2 EAth FEURIA -
The aging analysis of other debtors that are neither individually nor AR B 2k F R4 AR A R (B 2 E b FE R
collectively considered to be impaired are as follows: TR BRI AT T -
2012 2011
—E2--F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Neither past due nor impaired 45 360 B PR 4R R (B 2,117 264
Less than 1 month past due wHEAAR R —E A 63 -
1 to 3 months past due wmE—Z= =@ A - -
Over 3 months to 1 year past due A= EAE—F 312 702
Over 1 year past due BEARRIE—F 132 268
2,624 1,234
Other receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a £ %80 BB 3 ARG (E 2 H b 8 W Rk TR T B R
number of independent debtors that have a good track record with SEZEREBERTEFRLHE LB ILEBLEA
the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company B - RBBELR  RNRARESRAT
are of the opinion that no allowance for impairment is necessary ARZEERELRERE  FEAREE
in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant ERWESKEE  MZRSERDFEER
change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully A EEIE - AREEWEBL I FLERIEE
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit EE R ek At EAERIER -

enhancements over these balances.

All of the deposits, prepayments and other receivables are expected FrBR® - TR AR SR E h fE R I8 78 A

to be recovered or recognised as expense within one year. AR —FAREKER RS
25.Amount due from a jointly-controlled entity 25. B EIEZEFIE R IR

The amount due from a jointly-controlled entity is unsecured, Rt EEFIERFRIELAEER 28R

[==F1=-=32

interest free and has no fixed terms of repayment. I B FEE SR o
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26. Equity investments at fair value through profit or loss

26. BRVFEUEBERIIRZESRE

Trading securities BEEE%
Group
AEE
2012 2011
e
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHT
At fair value: BAYE
Listed equity investments in Hong Kong ERLEMELHEE 29,843 46,405
Listed equity investments outside Hong Kong ~ &AASMGE 2
EBHRE 200 278
30,043 46,683

Changes in fair values of equity investments at fair value through

BAFERBRIIRZEBLFRE ZAFE

profit or loss are recognised in the consolidated statement of EBENGE T EBSRPER -
comprehensive income.
27.Derivative financial instrument 27.0TEMBIA
2012 2011
s e
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Termination Right 22 16,159 -

Note: With respect to the Tian Da Agreements as detailed in note 20(iii), the Group has
the right to elect to terminate the acquisition of Tian Da, and the Counterparties
shall pay the entire investment amount already paid by VFHC plus interest, in
the event that certain conditions stipulated in the Tian Da Agreements are not
fulfilled (the "Termination Right"). These certain conditions had not been fulfilled
as of the Long Stop Date of 18 March 2012 and date of approval of these financial
statements. The Company recognised the full impairment of the available-for-sale
investment in Tian Da as at 30 April 2012. The fair value of the Termination Right
is accounted for by reference to the amount of the entire investment amount paid
for the Tian Da Acquisition plus interest as specified in the Tian Da Agreements.

As at the date of the First Supplemental Extension Letter and as at 30 April 2011,
the Company had not elected to terminate the acquisition of Tian Da. As at those
respective dates, such investment in Tian Da was recognised as available-for-sale
investment (note 20(iii)).

BIEE - A BE S IE 70 MY &E20(i) 2 7% ER K -
SEAEEREELRIBRA - WZERKH
T 2 BT REREER - RZHFAX
NVFHCA N 28R E @ BER A S (T4 b
#))  ZEETHRERRREXBEH _-F
——F=A+N\BRIEERBHRRZA
MAEK - AARIKR=_T—=—FMA=+H
BRAAZ AIHHERERERE © #K1E
B2 AFETIZ2EZSFRAAN AR A
WEEFT > 2 BRI E S BUERM S Mt H o

REOFREHNH R T ——FMA
=+B  AARALEBEELIPRERA - 8
EEMBHY  ZENRRZRETIHER R
HHERE (MFaE20(ii) °
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28.Cash and cash equivalents 28. RERFAESEHEIEH
Group Company
rEE A E]
2012 2011 2012 2011

—B--F T —F Z%F-—=F —T—F
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TAER TAT TER TAT

Cash and bank balances & MIRITEE R 120,338 124,478 13,584 25,082
Time deposits TEHITF =X 5,309 72,720 - 421
Cash and cash equivalents mEHEmER

in the consolidated IR R

statement of cash flows INEZEIER 125,647 197,198 13,584 25,503
Cash and cash equivalents include short-term bank deposits carrying e RRSZSHEBEBEERRITHERNX
interest at prevailing market rates. The directors consider the carrying STEZHEERITER c ESRAENHREE
value of the amount at the end of the reporting period approximates Rz B 2 REEHEAFEES -

to the fair value.

29.Accounts payable 29. FE{FERRX
The aging of the Group’s accounts payable is analysed as follows: AEE 2 BAERRZ R DT T ¢
Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E-—F —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHT
0 — 30 days 0230H 648 462
31 —90 days 31£290H 104 87
91 — 180 days 912180H - -
181 — 360 days 181E360H - -
Over 360 days @360 H 443 429
1,195 978
The accounts payable is non-interest bearing and are normally settled ERERARBEREF R —M A998 -
on 90-day terms. The carrying amounts of the accounts payable at FETBR SRR 3R 25 Hi R 2 BR BB B2 A - {E 4R

++

the end of the reporting period approximates to the fair values.  °
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30.Accruals and deposits received 30. Bt REREWIRE
Group Company
rEE KA F]
2012 2011 2012 2011

—E-—F —T——%F ZEB-=ZF —T—F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FH&T FET FHT

Accruals fEstaIE 6,650 11,463 2,997 3,325
Accrued salaries, [EEtH e  TER
wages and benefits = 3,613 2,441 - -
Rental and other deposits Blie kEMiZe
received 1,476 3,138 - -
VAT and other tax payables FESHIEER &
H A% I8 91 4 - =
Other payables H b e I8 138 10,882 27 27
11,968 27,928 3,024 3,352
Included in accruals of the Group and the Company are amounts REERARFREGFIBBEENAAF
of approximately HK$850,000 (2011: HK$350,000) and HK$350,000 B = 2 ERT H B 49850,0008 T (=& ——
(2011: HK$350,000) respectively representing accrued remuneration £ 350,000/ 7T) K2350,000/ 7T (ZF ——
due to the Company’s directors. F 1 350,00087T) °
The carrying amounts of accruals and deposits received at the end of EETRIBREYIZSRIMERR 2 REE
the reporting period approximates to the fair values. HENFEEE °
All of the accruals and deposits received are expected to be settled or i st B REWIR e TBE AR —F A

recognised as income within one year or are repayable on demand. BESIER AW ASIEERKER -
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31.Finance lease payable 31. ENMEMHELORIER

Group
rER
Minimum lease Present value of
payments minimum lease payments
REEQNR BREENNRZRE
2012 2011 2012 2011
—B--f —T——F ZB-=ZHF —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAT THERT FHET

Amount payable: FE{SFRIE -
Within one year —FN 133 - 118 -
After 1 year but within 2 years —F R ERFER 123 — 115 —
After 2 years but within 5 years ~ FREEZERFEA 71 = 70 =
Less: Future finance charges B RRBMEER (24) = - =
Present value of finance lease FE B E M A9 FKIE

payable RE 303 - 303 -
Less: Portion classified as B EDBEARE

current liabilities BEHD (118) -

Non-current portion IEREEL D 185 =
The above finance lease is in respect of the Group’s motor vehicles. i E Ay EAEBEEEARR - A
The lease term is three years. For the year ended 30 April 2012, the B=FE REER-_ZET——FmMA=+HIt
average effective borrowing rate was 5.9% (2011: Nil) per annum. FE . EHAEMEERAEEFS W (ZE
Interest rate is fixed at the contract date. The lease is on a fixed ——F ) o IERNAL ST - HE
repayment basis and no arrangement has been entered into for BRETEES  WWES AR ST (A
contingent rental payments. The net carrying amount of the motor ZHE o JRE 2 BRENF(E A331,000/8 7T °

vehicle was HK$331,000.



114

Vongroup Limited * Annual Report 2012

32.Bank borrowings

The analysis of the carrying amount of bank borrowings is as follows:

32. R1TIEE

RITEEREEZATAT

Group
AEE
2012 2011
—E-——F —T——1F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F& T THT
Current liabilities REBEE
Portion of term loans from banks due for —FERNEHEZE ZRITEH
repayment within one year BRE S 1,872 2,666
Portion of term loans from banks due for —FEBBPEEME TS
repayment after one year which contain RERERIER BT
a repayment on demand clause EHERHD 37,922 25,131
Total HEt 39,794 27,797
As at 30 April 2012, total interest-bearing bank borrowings were due R-ZE——FWMA=+H " FHEEZ
for repayment as follows: BIRTTEERENT -
Group
AEE
2012 2011
—E—-C—fF —F——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#& T THT
Portion of term loans from banks due for —F RPN HAEE ZRITEH
repayment within one year EXED 1,872 2,666
Term loans due for repayment after one year —FEEHEE THER
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERMEA 1,882 1,236
After 2 years but within 5 years MEEERAEEAN 5,691 3,765
After 5 years FF% 30,349 20,130
37,922 25,131
39,794 27,797
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32.Bank borrowings (Continued)

Bank borrowings of HK$19,311,000 as at 30 April 2012 and
HK$20,281,000 as at 30 April 2011 were secured by certain
investment properties with fair value amount of HK$42,200,000
and HK$39,800,000 respectively. The interest is charged at 0.7% per
annum over 1-month HIBOR, and capped at 2.5% per annum below
prime rate for both years 2011 and 2012.

Bank borrowings of HK$13,394,000 as at 30 April 2012 and
HK$6,085,000 as at 30 April 2011 were secured by certain
investment properties with fair value amount of HK$30,900,000 and
HK$12,670,000 respectively. Interest is charged at 1.25% per annum
over 3-month HIBOR, and capped at 2.75% per annum below prime
rate for both years 2011 and 2012.

The balance of bank borrowing of HK$7,089,000 as at 30 April
2012 was secured by the Group’s leasehold land and buildings held
for own use carried at cost (note 13) with net carrying amount of
HK$15,036,000. The interest is charged at 1.25% per annum over
3-month HIBOR, and capped at 2.75% per annum below prime rate.

Another bank borrowing of HK$1,431,000 as at 30 April 2011 was
secured by a personal guarantee provided by Mr. Wong Chi Man,
an ex-director of the Company and the Group’s leasehold land and
buildings held for own use carried at cost (note 13) with net carrying
amount of HK$3,998,000. The interest is charged at 2.4% per annum
below prime rate. Such bank borrowing was fully settled in July 2011.

2. 8R1TIBE (&

R_E——FNA=1+HRER _-ZT——
F£7m A=+ 8 % 5l £19,311,000% 7T &
20,281,000% 7T Z SRITEE T2 AILA R FE
/442,200,000 7T 539,800,000/ 7T 2 # T
BREMEEER . T FR T ——
FMFEZFMBIE—EABBRITRER
BN0.7E 2 FFERIKER - fFFE LR A
BB EF2.5E -

R—E——FHNA=+BE_ZF——
FH A=+ 85 5l /&13,394,000% T &
6,085,000/ 7T Z SRITIEE T1 5 B LA A (A
430,900,000/ 7T 12,670,000 7T 2 & T
REMEEET e —T——FHR—FT——
FWMEZF B =M AEBRITEER
BN 25E 2 FF R ER - mEFIE LR
RERBENE K2 75 o

R-ZE——FWNA=Z+HZRIEE
4% £37,089,0007% TG LA AN £ B BR R (B 5
15,036,000/ 7T 2 LA ARSI EFEE A 2
FAE i RAEFIEE R (KTEE13) - KB TY
R=EABBRITRAZEREIN2EZF
FIEHE - MEFE LR AZEFFNER
275 o

R-ZEBE——FWMA=1+H " B—£iET7E
B1,431,0008 T AR R R A EE = AR
EEREZ AAEREANEERADFES
3,998,000/8 7T 2 AP ARSI E R 1EE A 2 1
&4 RIEF IR (FFFE13) ° FIBTHiE
REBRFERE24EE - ZF2RTEER
R_ZT——F+ AREHEE -
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33.Deferred tax liabilities

(@)

The movement in deferred tax liabilities during the year is as
follows:

33. EEERIEEE

(a)

AEEN BERAEREZBHN
™

Group
AEE
2012 2011
—E—CfF —F—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Depreciation allowance in excess of related FB:EH EITE
depreciation ZITERE
At beginning of the year and end of the year FAF ) & FE 591 591

Deferred tax assets are to be recognised for the carry forward
of unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the unused tax
losses can be utilised.

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect
of tax losses of HK$188,637,000 (2011: HK$123,579,000). The
unrecognised tax losses, mainly attributable to Hong Kong
companies, can be carried forward indefinitely.

Withholding tax

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has
not been provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of temporary differences attributable to the profits
earned by the PRC subsidiaries amounting to HK$2,447,000
(2011: HK$4,051,000) as the Group is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

BEETRIBEEZ A BB 2 REBAH
THE R T LARER - AR BEA R E
bt M R SR B MR ERE
AR e

K& B I oK 1 7R B #8188,637,0007%8 7T
BB EEHIBEEE (ZF——
F 1 123,579,000/8 7T ) ° RIER Z T IE

BRIBREFELR - Al ERMG
8 o
B

BEABRCEMEDE  BZTEN
F—HA—Hi - REMERQRFTER
B F 99k A% BB 8 AT 4077 - AR
7 52 1B A J7E o) B8 0 B B A B 2 PR
BEREENA RERETeEE -
U 4 Bt o B BT B A ) BT R B ) 7
1 2 B 2= %82,447,00056 ¢ (T ——
£ : 4,051,000 7T) RERE IS IwKIE
HRIET IR R o
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The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “New
Scheme”) effective from 30 September 2011 for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the New Scheme include the Company’s directors,
including non-executive directors, employees of the Group, any
other groups or classes of suppliers, customers, subcontractors or
agents of the Group and the Company’s shareholders determined
by the directors as having contributed or who may contribute to the
development and growth of the Group. The Scheme, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, remains in force for 10 years from the
effective date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the New Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible participant in the New Scheme within
any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of
this limit is subject to shareholder’s approval in a general meeting.

34.Share capital 34. A
Group and Company
KEERAAH
2012 2011
—E-—F 2%
Number of Number of
shares HK$'000 shares HK$'000
REAEE TET Bk FAL
Authorised: T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each BREBE01ETL
Lk 200,000,000,000 200,000  200,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER
At beginning and end of the year RENRER 5,859,860,900 5,860 5,859,860,900 5,860
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as TERSEAGRBRAARS IR ZKE
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share WHERARBIRREAS EREFRRHIE
at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with —ZE AL BERERRRFBREEZS
regard to the Company’s residual assets. RZEHAL o
35.Share option scheme 35. R A2

ARAH T ——F A=+ HERMNH
B ([#518))  EEREAKHE
EBELERZAER2EEFLER KL
B - et B2 A ER2RERBEAAT
ZEE (BREIFNTES)  AEHES -
AEE T EMARSIER 2 HER - B
B OHBARER UREERR
KA HAREXBERLEREER
ZARABIR © BRIFR A TTREHHAERT -
BRI BB LM B ME TFRN—EA

8 43
=R

N

BB E - REEER LT R RITERZ
BRENITER TS k2 Iy ERESER
AR BEEFAIRRED BT 210% ° FEE
A+ —@EARE  HrESaER2EE
R 2 B K2 Pl TR D ERR R
RAVEERRRED BTG 21% © BHME
HBH IR B L AERRAE £
EERCRALAE -
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35.Share option scheme (Continued)

Share options granted to any director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors of
the Company. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based
on the official closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of
the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders” approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days
from the date of offer, upon the payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee. An option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the New Scheme at any time during the
period commencing from the date on which the option is deemed
to be granted and accepted and expiring on a date to be notified by
the directors to each grantee, which shall not be more than 10 years
from the date on which the option is deemed to be granted and
accepted. There is no minimum holding period before an option may
be exercised.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant
of the share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of
the Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

No share options under the New Scheme were granted and
outstanding during the years ended 30 April 2011 and 2012.

35. BRAERT B (2

BFEMES  TRAHK AR EER
R EEZEMABBALT ZEBRE - X
BELERNRR B IERITES A -
AN - W RAME + = A R T AR A
FERRSBIIFNTER RS 2 EA
BEEE A T2 RERIRIE 2 B EBBE AN QB EE
MEFEE TGN 20.1%82E (RIBEAR
AL ERES BARRRD ZE HKH
B1E) #8i85,000,00078 7T * 7B AR
KRG HERFRE -

AERATUBERLEREZZZE BER
Tt HAXMREMBTZEENE
EMARER - BREATRERARE M
EMEEREME (AEEMEEARA) B
I BE B AR R et &l (KT T - AR
TReBAmBRERR AR E MERE R
R - BRETENLERKERSA
BR

BREZTEERHESEE - BTFE
RTIEEE : ((REBREZERARAF
(LN A QN R (DRSNS §vdiS
ERREBRES BT EERS B EBR
Az FHWHE - RN RRN ZH
@ o

BREYERTHAEAZEREINBR
RE LRRZHERH -

REE_T——FER_T—_—FMA=1+
HIEFE - SEBREDRENTERE
M AT TE ©
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36.Reserves 36. &
Group ZrEEH
Attributable
Capital  Statutory to owners
Share redemption surplus  Exchange of the
premium reserve reserve translation Accumulated  Company

k& BA& HE reserve losses y N
#EE BERE EHEE EXRE ZRER HAARG
(note i) (note ii) (note iii) (note iv)

(Wak) (ki) (i) (M)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THER TR THR THR TR

At 1 May 2010 W_E-T&RA—H 533,020 262 156 531 (183,848) 350,121
Loss for the year ~FEEER - = = = (7,674) (7,674)
Exchange adjustment R - - - 538 - 538
Share of reserve movement of EEERZHE®E
jointly-controlled entity REEEZS - - - 82 - 82
Total comprehensive expense for the year AFE2E T 1A% - - - 620 (7,674) (7,054)
Transfer R - - 99 - (99) -
At 30 April 2011 and 1 May 2011 RZE——EMA=1H
kZE——FRA[—H 533,020 262 255 1,151 (191,621) 343,067
Loss for the year AEEER - - - - (41,220) (41,220)
Exchange adjustment & 7 A2 - - - 498 - 498
Share of reserve movement of FEfEEREHESE .
jointly-controlled entity FEE - - - 37 - 37
Total comprehensive expense for the year AFELE S HA%E - - - 535 (41.220) (40,685)
Transfer B - - 15 - (15) -

At 30 April 2012 RZE-Z“£WA=1H 533,020 262 270 1,686 (232,856) 302,382
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36.Reserves (Continued) 36. ffE (&
Company g
Capital
Share redemption
premium reserve Accumulated
gy f& Z< losses Total
wnER EWOEE E2BEER ast
(note i) (note ii)
(Bf¥5Ei) (P =Eii)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FET
At 1 May 2010 R-—T—ZEFHH—H 540,586 262 (181,263) 359,585
Loss for the year AEEEB - = (3,581) (3,581)
At 30 April 2011 and RZE——FMNA=+H
1 May 2011 MN—E——FHA—H 540,586 262 (184,844) 356,004
Loss for the year AEEFEE - = (99,955) (99,955)
At 30 April 2012 R=-ZB——-—FWHA=+H 540,586 262 (284,799) 256,049

The Company’s reserves as at 30 April 2012 available for distribution
to owners of the Company as calculated under the provision of the

Companies Law of Cayman Islands are approximately HK$256,049,000
(2011: approximately HK$356,004,000).

Nature and purpose of reserves

(a) Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed by

the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. Under the Companies

Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in share premium account
are distributable to shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend is

proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position
to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of

business.

ARAR-_E——FNWA=THRIERS

BERREZREMTEAH

EFAR

AIEA A 2 FEE#H) /5256,049,000/8 7T (= F

——4 : #9356,004,000/57T) °

HEHEER F%

B EEREAXMASESRRDE
FIRE - REFSHSERRNE - KK
BERCEZAIDIRTARABR -
HARRERBRZRERERER
BNBRNEERERTE XKD B HH
Nz &% -
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36.Reserves (Continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(b) Capital redemption reserve

(0

(d)

The capital redemption reserve represents the amount by which
the Company’s issued share capital has been diminished on the
cancellation of the shares purchased. Under the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands, the capital redemption reserve may be
applied by the Company in paying up its unissued shares to be
allocated to shareholders of the Company as fully-paid bonus
shares.

Statutory surplus reserve

According to the Company’s PRC subsidiaries’ articles of
association, the PRC company is required to transfer 10% of
its net profit after tax, as determined in accordance with the
PRC accounting rules and regulations, to the statutory surplus
reserve. When the balance of the statutory surplus reserve
reaches 50% of the PRC company’s registered capital, any further
appropriation is optional. The transfer to this reserve must be
made before distribution of a dividend to the shareholders.

Statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up previous years’
losses, if any, and may be converted into capital in proportion to
their existing shareholdings, provided that the balance after such
conversion is not less than 25% of the registered capital.

Exchange translation reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of
operations outside Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(p).

36. e (&)
REMERAZ (&)

(b) FRASE ]

RABEFEEDAAR D HTRAR
EEHEBERMMEI 22/ - R
BRSBESQEDE - ANAR A FEAR
BORFEARXHARBRRES R
ZARBITRD - ERERUEIRGRAL

(€ JEEER A

REARRZHERBARZEABE
RAR PEARLBERRETEE
FHAR Bl N 42 191 T 22 10%6R5 ot 1 4 M %
BEEBRFHE - BEAERRFEBE
FRE R P B R B E AN 2 50%6F - A
EBERTHELE— SR - BREZ%
[EEUER DIRBE TR 2 ATETT

AEBRFHBAIRIERANATFRELZ
B (H) - WAIRBRA RIS
ZEEBBRREERERBRA - EERRE
2R TS OREME AR Z225%

(d) B fHE

[E SRR BRI E R AN 2 B
BHRMELEZFAAINEZRE © %i#
IRIEM R 2(0) PRV ST BRR R IR ©
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37.Acquisition of assets and liabilities

(a) Acquisition of assets and liabilities through

purchase of House2buy

In February 2012, Kingsmake Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement with an
independent third party to acquire assets and liabilities through
the acquisition of 100% equity interest in House2buy for a total
consideration of approximately HK$12,337,000. House2buy is
engaged in property investment.

The assets and liabilities acquired in the transaction are as
follows:

37. WBEERARE
(a) ZBBIBEEEXZIIBACEE

REE/E

RZE—ZF=R ARFAIZEE
B B A AlKingsmake Limited £ % 37 25
ZHE VB REBUNBEREY
12,337,000/ T B B X 5 2 BT
WHEERBE BEXZEWER
S

REGMBACZEEREEBRT
Carrying amount

and fair value
of House2buy

BEXS2
REERAFE
HK$'000
THT
Assets and liabilities acquired: FiiEAZEEREE

Investment property B 12,374
Utility deposits ARAEBRAXZES 39
Rental deposit received DRE SRS (76)
Net asset value of House2buy upon acquisition UWEERFE % 5 2 EE/%E 12,337
Total consideration, satisfied by cash BRE - LRSS 12,337

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition WHEEA 2R E Rt =58
Cash consideration RER(E (12,337)

(b) Acquisition of an asset through purchase of Best

Profit

In May 2011, VGI, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an agreement with an independent third party to
acquire an asset through the acquisition of 100% equity interest
in Best Profit, a property investment holding company, at a
consideration of approximately HK$2,763,000.

(b) ZBBEERITBAZEE

R=ZF——FHA A2F—HEE
BB A RIVGIERYE N 55 = 5 5T S e
NEBUEEREZTBREMBAE
B B 42,763,000 T 85—
MR EER AT ©
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37.Acquisition of assets and liabilities (Continued) 37. WBEEREE (&)
(b) Acquisition of an asset through purchase of Best (b) BEEEERITIEAZEE
Profit (Continued) (#&)
The asset acquired in the transaction is as follows: RGFMBAZEENT :

Carrying amount
and fair value
of Best Profit

=2z
IREERQFE
HK$'000
TABTT
Assets acquired: FIBAZEE :
Deposit paid for acquisition of WHE—TBIREMHE SN2
an investment property (note 19) e (fizE19) 2,763
Total consideration, satisfied by cash BWRE LIRS X 2,763
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEELE RS RS

Cash consideration BERE (2,763)
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37.Acquisition of assets and liabilities (Continued)

(c) Acquisition of assets and liabilities through
purchase of Maxfine

During the year 2011, VGI entered into an agreement with an
independent third party to acquire assets and liabilities through
the acquisition of 100% equity interest in Maxfine for a total
consideration of HK$15 million. Maxfine is engaged in property
investment holdings.

The assets and liabilities acquired in the transaction are as

37. BAZEERAR (&)

() ZBEEHEGIBAZEER
BE

RZE——F  VeIEBIYE=HF]
M BB SRR 2 AR
ABEREE - 8B/ E&15000,0007%
TC © BRI B IR BRI ER -

RPBACEERARNT

follows:
Carrying amount
and fair value
of Maxfine
BA 1 =z BRI (B
EATE
HK$'000
THT
Assets and liabilities acquired: FTEBAZEENMERE :
Investment property B 15,000
Amount due to a shareholder FES AR B F A (9,132)
Bank borrowing RITIHE (4,523)
Net asset value of Maxfine upon acquisition RUBESERK £ FRET 2 B EFE 1,345
Assignment of debt payable to VGI ERIEN TVCI 2B 9,132
Settlement of bank borrowing at the date REK BESERITEE
of completion 4,523
Total asset value BERE 15,000
Total cash consideration paid for acquisition IWEERRE TS (S 2 BIRERE
of Maxfine 15,000
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition WEEEA 2R &mEF58
Cash consideration HeMRE (15,000)
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37.Acquisition of assets and liabilities (Continued) 37. WBEEREE (&)
(d) Acquisition of assets through purchase of Karver (d) &85 E Karver Assets Corp

Assets Corp (“Karver”) ([ Karver]) FriBA 2 5 E
During the year 2011, VGI entered into an agreement with an RZZT——F  VCIEBFE=F5L
independent third party to acquire assets through the acquisition Wz o BB BB Karver 2 ERARAERE A
of 100% equity interest in Karver, a property investment holding BE  R1{E A1,600,00075 7T © Karver
company, for a total consideration of HK$1.6 million. R EMEREZER AR °
The assets acquired in the transaction are as follows: REFMBAZEENT !

Carrying amount
and fair value

of Karver
Karver Z BREI{E
R ATE
HK$'000
FHETT
Assets acquired: FIEBACBE
Deposit paid in respect of acquisition MEBEREWES M2kE
of an investment property 1,600
Total consideration BRE 1,600

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition
Cash consideration

WHEEA 2R F5E
RERKE (1,600)
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38.Disposal of a subsidiary

During the year 2011, the Group signed an agreement with an
independent third party to dispose of its 45% equity interest in Guo
Xin China Pay Systems Limited (“Guo Xin”) at a total consideration of

38. HE—EMEB LR

R-T——F AEEE-ZBIF=)
R~z LEERBHERRA
BRAE ([B#]) 4% 4 - BRER

HK$78,000.

Details of the carrying amount and fair value of Guo Xin are

summarised as below:

78,00078 7T ©

B 2 BREE R A HERFIBHA T

Carrying amount
and fair value

of Guo Xin

Bl 2 REE

RATE

HK$'000

FHET

Property, plant and equipment Y - BB R 3

Deposit paid in respect of acquisition TEEYVE  BE

of property, plant and equipment MBI NzZEe 1,761

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables & - BAERRREMERKIE 255

Cash and cash equivalents He kIReEEIEE 353

Accruals ExtER (160)

Net asset value (100%) & EF(E(100%) 2,212

Non-controlling interests (55%) FEVE AR AE 25 (55%) (6,338)

Net carrying value of Guo Xin BT 2 AR E (4,126)

Gain on disposal & e 4,204

Total consideration BRE 78
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEE RS MTFR

Cash consideration RENRE 78

Cash and cash equivalents ReRAESEEERH (353)

(275)

39. Contingent liabilities

39. AREE

In December 2005, a legal action was commenced by a former
employee of KCCC, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
against KCCC for the claim of approximately HK$1,569,000 for
personal injuries, loss and damages suffered during work at KCCC.
In the opinion of the directors, such claim should be adequately
covered by the Group’s insurance. Hence, no provision has been
made in the financial statements.

R_EERE+_A  ARAZ22EKH
B R FIKCCCZ — & R {E B $KCCOREUA
78 MERBRKCERSESZASE
= BARRKEEmMREL1,569,000% T ©
EERE AEEZREBREABMAZERE
& o Bt - MER SRR PR -
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40.0perating lease arrangements 40. REBNORZH
(a) As lessor (a) FERHFEA
The Group leases out its investment properties (note 15) under AEBERBEERO LN HEERE
operating lease arrangements, typically with leases negotiated i (ftax15) - — A AME -
for terms of two years. The terms of the leases generally also KRR — M IR E KA A S %
require the lessee to pay security deposit. & o
At 30 April 2012, the Group had total future minimum lease R-ZTE——FWMA=1+H  ~AEEIR
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with lessees BRI REEGE AR TFIEIH R A
falling due as follows: BN R 2R E MR S (R A A9 SR IB 4858
Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E——fF —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET T
Within one year —FR 2,152 1,012
In the second to fifth years, inclusive MERF (BIEEERS) 1,025 121
3,177 1,133
(b) As lessee (b) fERAFA
At 30 April 2012, the Group had outstanding commitments under RNZZE——_FWMA=+H ' AEER
non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows: PRAIRHEE R SO 2 REREBER T
5| HABR ZI| &R -
Group
rEH
2012 2011
—E—_—F ===
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Within one year —F R 6,574 1,373
In the second to fifth years, inclusive MERT (BIEEHEERE) 26,026 =
After the fifth year hF& 1,121 =
33,721 1,373
The Group leases restaurant premises and offices under non- REBERBETAIRHAEHORIHE
cancellable operating lease arrangements with lease terms EEBMELPAE BN TIRE

ranging from two to six years. A o



1 28 Vongroup Limited * Annual Report 2012

41.Related party transactions M BEAEALRS
(a) 1n addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere (@) BRI SRS R H it 7 BT I BR 4
in these financial statements, the Group had the following R G REERIN  REBRAFE AN HE
transactions with its related parties during the year: FEANTETATRS -

Related expenses/(income)

BEBAR (W)
As at 30 April Year ended 30 April
REA=+AH BEOA=1+HLEE
2012 2011 2012 2011

—E2--F —_FT——4F ZB-=F —FT——
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAT FET FET

Legal fees and corporate EEER R A RIWE
secretarial fees (note(i)) BA (MEEG) 266 21 468 87
Rental income (note(ii)) WA (BFEEG)) - = (292) -
Amount due from a JE LT FE [R] 42 il
jointly-controlled entity B2 TNIR
Advanced to B - 40 N/ATER N/ATER
Repayment BB IR (33) - N/ATRER NATER
Outstanding balance REBZ&EH
(note 25) (M$3E25) 234 267 N/ATERA NATEM
Note: iz -
(i)  The legal fees were charged for legal services rendered by a law firm, a () AEEER—TAEMEBH (KF s
partner of which is a close relative of a director, Mr. Vong Tat leong, David. BARESEERFTEZIR) IREZ2E
The corporate secretarial service fees were charged for services rendered BRREXNRMER - RAWERBZ
by a corporate secretarial firm which is controlled by a close relative of a ERNBRESEREBAEZERATE
director, Mr. Vong Tat leong, David. #il 2 R EIRE R B AT A AR TS 2 A o
The amount is unsecured, interest free and due on presentation. OE A . 0 B L ENEAREST o
(i) The rental income was received from a company which is controlled by a iy HEeWAKBEETEZELEEZABRM
close relative of a director, Mr. Vong Tat leong, David. 182 AF] ©
(b) Compensation of key management personnel b) TEEEANSZH#H1E
The remuneration of director of key management during the FAEZEBBEABZEEMEAT -

year is as follows:

2012 2011
—g-C—F —F——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBT TET

Short term employee benefits KHEE B
Fees e 5,400 3,000
Salaries and other benefits e hEMmET 600 850

6,000 3,850
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42.(ritical accounting estimates and judgments

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies which

are described in note 2, management has made certain key

assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of

estimated uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year, as discussed below.

(1)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for its property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions. It could
change significantly as a result of technical innovations and
competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation charge where
useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment as at
30 April 2012 were HK$18,742,000 (2011: HK$7,678,000).

42. B REEHAET R
(a) THHRAIEET 2 EERKR

RN E BT BR (FH R M
2) 2iBREF - EEBEURMEHRN
TEABAMEET 2 KRR R E Ath 3 ZRRIE
EETEZERS - BABRKAIES

BYR TRV BREEHEERBE
ZHRABEEERARZEXRER -
SIERAAE o

(i) Y% - BERRE IEHFL

AEEEEREETEME  BFE

R B AERFEH LA
WEER - AT REBER
b MERDEERTZWE -
R N i < BIR P {E B S B
fEH - BRI EH RBEFHTF
HER&TRAMMELTTE
ZfhETATRE L IR E R EE) © fid 7]
ERFERER TG 2 FH
BEESRESITEER %K
R EE Sk h B 2 BT E B S IR B A
B E M MR -

M- BMERZBERZZ—Z_F
/YA =+ H 2 BRE & 418,742,000
BT (ZF — — 4 : 7,678,000
TT) °
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42, Critical accounting estimates and judgments
(Continued)

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of property, plant and equipment and lease

premium for land

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset, which requires
significant judgement relating to level of revenue and
amount of operating costs. The Group uses all readily
available information in determining an amount that is
a reasonable approximation of the recoverable amount,
including estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of revenue and operating
costs. Changes in these estimates could have a significant
impact on the carrying value of the assets and could result
in additional impairment charge or reversal of impairment
in future periods.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
and lease premium for land as at 30 April 2012 were
HK$18,742,000 (2011: HK$7,678,000) and HK$1,460,000
(2011: HK$1,447,000) respectively.

42. EREFHEFTRAE (&

(a) TEHBIET 2 EEHKIR (&)

(i) =% - BERREARLIBHEE

1

BEM @S8R AH D FERHE
ERAEBEREEMETZER
% EfhEHERERR - Tk
AARRRSREMBEERREE
B ERZRBE RS RRIRE
Mgt ERRERZEER
ERREZHMAER  THE
HWAKER L ERAREHER
HE - AEEFNBAAREER
HAKESBEREAE 81
RIBEAE R A 5 2 BRI KR
ATBERA 2 EREITHE -
BB BB EERE
BEAEAFE YrEERE
ARBEEHRBEIN AR Bk
BEIEHRZRIE °

Mz MEREZBERZZ—Z=F
WMA=+HZ2ERMmENUR LM
A £ 5 Bl A18,742,000% T (=
T — — 4 :7678,0008 L) &
1,460,000/ T (= & — — 4
1,447,000/ 7T ) °
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42.(ritical accounting estimates and judgments
(Continued)

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iii) Estimate fair value of investment properties

(iv)

The investment properties were revalued at the end of
the reporting period by reference to comparable market
transactions by independent qualified valuers. Such
valuations were based on certain assumptions, which are
subject to uncertainty and might materially differ from the
actual results. In making the judgment, the Group considers
information from current prices in an active market for
similar properties and uses assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at each balance sheet
date.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at 30 April
2012 were HK$119,541,000 (2011: HK$99,720,000).

Impairment of receivables and moneylending loan
receivables

The Group maintains impairment allowance for doubtful
accounts based upon evaluation of the recoverability of
the accounts receivable, moneylending loan receivables
and other receivables, where applicable, at each end of the
reporting period. The estimates are based on the aging of
the accounts receivable, moneylending loan receivables
and other receivables balances and the historical write-
off experience, net of recoveries. If the financial condition
of the debtors were to deteriorate, additional impairment
allowance may be required.

The carrying amount of accounts receivable, moneylending
loan receivables and other receivables as at 30 April 2012
were HK$471,000 (2011: HK$489,000), HK$23,026,000 (2011:
HK$14,655,000) and HK$17,531,000 (2011: HK$14,661,000)
respectively.

2. EREHAFTRHE (&)

(a) THEETHZEERKR (&)

(iii) EYFEZ et 2 FlE

BREMERRERRABILEE
RGEME2EAELBRTHER
58 - ZEHEDRESE TR
FETT - BARKIRNAERE
ARER - EEH AR KN&HE
EEZERABENERIERETIS
RENER YEEAETERE
EHEEHERMAMEL 2R

REMEN-_ZT——FMWA=—1
B 2 BRI 18 A119,541,000/8 7T (=
T ——£ : 99,720,000787T) ©

(iv) [ERARIBRE R K BB EW

H

REBREHR - AREREEUW
FRAX - EUUE B 5K K E At FE U
IR (WEA) Z AT B R 2 f
A BERERORERE - ARG
ATRBRERYR - BYRES
TR Ko EL At B U TR I 4 B 2 BR G
JE 5 SH RO SR HIBR AT e Bl & BR AT
B WREAZHBARAB
FIBEZRAERIEHBESN IR E R

FEUBRIR - B EE R R E M
EWHRER-_E——FMA=1
H 2 8= M E 5 5l &471,000% 7T
(= F — — 4 : 489,000/ JT)
23,026,000% 7T (= & — — £ -
14,655,000 7T) $%17,531,0007% 7T
—ZT——1F : 14,661,000 °
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42, Critical accounting estimates and judgments
(Continued)

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value.

The carrying amount of goodwill as at 30 April 2012 was
HK$6,212,000 (2011: HK$8,988,000).

Estimated fair value of equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss

The fair value of financial instruments in active markets (such
as listed securities) is based on quoted market prices at the
end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used
for financial assets held by the Group is the closing bid price
at the end of the reporting period.

The carrying amount of equity investments at fair
value through profit or loss was HK$30,043,000 (2011:
HK$46,683,000).

42. EREFHEFTRAE (&

(a) THHRAtE A2 E BRI (&)

)

(vi)

faat B R E

ETRERTLIRER - Al
AESEKEBRECREELE UL
EREER- FEERERR - X
SEAGEHERSELEM
EEZARRREREREE 2/
BERUERE -

FEN-—T——FMA=+HY
BREE 56,212,000/ 70 (=& ——
£F : 8,988,000/87T) °

BAFENERIIEZ EHRE
ZIHAFE

RiERmS 2 BT A (flantm
E) ZAFETIZRRIBEHR
ZHIZHREFE - AREAFHE
MBEEMERZMSRERR
HERRZBEmEANE -

BATFEANBRINEZESRE
Z BR M B A30,043,000% T (=&
——4F : 46,683,000/ 7T,) °
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2. EREHAFTRHE (&)

42.(ritical accounting estimates and judgments
(Continued)

(a) THEETHZEERKR (&)

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(vii) TFERE

(vii) Allowance for inventories

The management of the Group reviews its inventories at
the end of the each reporting period and make allowance
for obsolete and slow-moving inventory items identified
that no longer marketable or suitable for use in production.
Management estimates the net realisable value for such
items based primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions. The Group carries out an
inventory review on a product-by-product basis at each end
of the reporting period and make allowance for obsolete
items.

The carrying amount of inventories as at 30 April 2012 were
HK$7,711,000 (2011: HK$9,678,000).

(viii) Income taxes

As at 30 April 2012, no deferred tax asset (2011: Nil) in
relation to unused tax losses HK$188,637,000 (2011:
HK$123,579,000) has been recognised in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisability of
the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient
future profits or taxable temporary differences will be
available in the future.

The current taxation for the year ended 30 April 2012 was
HK$69,000 (2011: HK$280,000). The carrying amount of
deferred tax liabilities and tax payables as at 30 April 2012
were HK$591,000 (2011: HK$591,000) and HK$22,101,000
(2011: HK$21,414,000) respectively.

AEEEEERSREHREI
HEFE Is#b s TBARM
CHEXBERNEEZRERF
HEEHEBFLEG - EEEX
EREBEFMPERERRERTH
o EETAEBER 2R #RF
B - AEBRNE T E HRRE R
EmEERETE  UHKRER
B fFH B -

HER-—_E——EmMA=+HY
BRMEME A7,711,000/8 T (=& ——
£ 1 9,678,000/87T) °

(viii) BT 2 7%

R-ZF——FMA=+H AR
RAETERT B 18 5% F 2OR - 8 &
RAEE Z iR VBRI RATE
7K {5 3 4 T8 /5 $8188,637,0007%8 JT
(=& — — £ : 123,579,000 JT)
BRELEHIELE (ZT——F -
)  RETHIEEE 2 A #HE L
ZEARBRELDAIEBSEAR
R ERTEREER -

HE-Z——-—FHA=+HLSF
[& 2 BN HATR 18 69,0008 7T (=&
——4 : 280,000/ 7T) ° IELEFIA
BERENHEBER=-_Z—Z=FH
A =1HZEKEE 5 A591,000
BT (ZF —— 4 1 591,000 1)
22,101,000 7T (=& — — 4 :
21,414,000 7T ) °
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42, Critical accounting estimates and judgments
(Continued)

(b) Critical accounting judgments in applying the

Group’s accounting policies

In determining the carrying amounts of some assets and
liabilities, the Group makes assumptions for the effects of
uncertain future events on those assets and liabilities at the end
of the reporting period. These estimates involve assumptions
about such items as cash flows and discount rates used. The
Group’s estimates and assumptions are based on historical
experience and expectations of future events and are reviewed
periodically. In addition to assumptions and estimations of
future events, judgments are also made during the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Available-for-sale investments are stated at cost less impairment.
Judgment is required when determining whether an impairment
exists. In making this judgment, historical data and factors such
as industry and sector performance and financial information
regarding the investee and certain specific conditions
surrounding the transactions giving rise to the investments are
taken into account.

42. EREFHEFTRAE (&

(b) 7£5| A KBS 1 BZF 2B

R M

EEERLEERABZRAER
AEERZEFEERABERRERNR
ZATAARKRERZ ZEFHRR -
ZEMFERRERENAER 28
BERZBR - AEEHRKEBR M
At R R R TIARIB I 2R 2 48 B S ORI I
Beg&Rme - RERREBEZER
KfhETON - I AAKREEFTRELZ
DR IR 1 T -

A ERERKARRETR - &
ERABHBERESRZFEHDHE - 1M
HAE R HEES - BEBIBARITE
RANKR - FARKRETZHMBE
o ARRREELHEBR S 25T
FERFSAZATER -
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43.Financial risk management objectives and policies 43. M EREE B ERBE

(a) Financial risk factors (a) BI7/EfE I E
The Group’s major financial instruments include equity AREBE EEZENBITAREERR
investments, borrowings, accounts and other receivables, & B EWER SRR E b E U R
moneylending loan receivables, derivative financial instrument IH - EREER - STHEMF T EN
and accounts and other payables. Details of the financial RIER R R H AL E FIE - BT
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated B HBEBEREENE - BzEH
with these financial instruments include credit risk, liquidity risk, BILEEB RRBEEERR R
currency risk, interest rate risk and equity price risk. The policies PBESRER  BEWERER - FIEERERR
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The Group’s A EE R o i PRIEZERER 2
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure BERHNTX - AEEEEEEER
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective EEZERRE - WEREEEMER
manner. HE 2B
(i) Credit risk () 1EEREE
Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default EERRBEXZHFHEREE
on its contractual obligation resulting in financial loss to HEEREASE H IR B EE
the Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing ZRBe AEEEREMN —ER
with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient R OEHARNBE ZRF5HF
collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the ETRGREERBRLTNERSRE
risk of financial loss from defaults. IR - MR ZE X PTE £

Z AR R o
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43.Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)  Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of accounts receivable, other receivables,
moneylending loan receivables and derivative financial
instrument, in order to minimise risk, the management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis. With
respect to accounts receivable, other receivables and
moneylending loan receivables, credit evaluations of its
customers’ financial position and condition are performed
on each and every major customer periodically. These
evaluations focus on the customers’ past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. For the derivative financial instrument,
credit evaluation of the counterparty’s financial viability is
performed periodically. The evaluation emphasize on the
assets held by the counterparty for meeting his obligation
and the valuation of the relevant assets. The Group does not
require collateral in respect of accounts receivable, other
receivables and derivative financial instrument. In respect of
moneylending loan receivables, the Group held collateral,
mainly land and buildings, gold and jewellery, for securing
the debts. Debts are usually due within 30 days from the
date of billing or as agreed in the respective agreement.
In addition, the management of the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group and the
Company's credit risk is significantly reduced.

In respect of accounts receivable, other receivables and
moneylending loan receivables, the Group's exposure
to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. The default risk of the
industry and country in which customers operate also has
an influence on credit risk. At the end of the reporting
period, the Group has no significant concentrations of
credit risk which individual balance exceeds 10% of the total
accounts receivables, other receivables and short term loans
receivables at the end of the reporting period.

The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

3. PHEBEEEEREE (£)

(a) ABEBERFZE (&

(i)

=FEmRE (&)

73R IK B U BR AR LA R URBR
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PREFPBEXNBIMRIAZRL
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REFPBAZEFEMRERR
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ENEEHRBREEZGE -
N 5 [ 3 4 A PR WBR K - B
W Rk R B T A B s T A SRR
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SENFEZERIBERT M RIE
F B2 MRE  UREBIEE
R o BB — RN Z B30
B ARk & i AT E B B3 5
JEAS = HEoh - AEBEEENR
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ERRAKERARBZEER
B KRB ©

BB AR R H A B WK R R R R
WHEERMS  AEEAZZ
EERREIEZZERNEFLZEH
PEeE - EPREMETERE
RZENRRTTZEEERR
RBEEHR AEELBEZ
EERBRERER - MEHERER
7818 B M AR R H A R WK R R
EREHEREREMREE L
10% ©

RekReFEEE ZEERR
BER ARXZEFREKREE
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43.Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(1)

(i)

3. BERREEREREEK (&)

(a) FIEEREEZE (&)

Credit risk (Continued) () 1EEEEE,
Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's BEAREEAZREEWERNR - JE
exposure to credit risk arising from accounts receivable, W 18 B 3R R H b fE W BR SR
moneylending loan receivables and other receivables are set EZEERE 2 EMFHEEERES
out in notes 22, 23 and 24 respectively. BIEFATTE22 ~ 23224 o
Liquidity risk (i) TEE 2R
Individual operating entities within the Group are AEBARBLIKEEREBT
responsible for its own cash management, including the BEReEEIE BERER
short term investment of cash surpluses and the raising BRI E REEE FAERN
of loans to cover expected cash demand, subject to board TEHRETR  HAKEEE 2
approval. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current BEFAEE - REBZHER
and expected liquidity requirements and its compliance FEHERAERIEMRBE ST
with lending covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient % REBTEERZD  AEERE
amount of cash and adequate committed lines of funding HRFEAREeNERREZESH
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity HWENSEMNEALEERE
requirements in the short and longer term. The Group relies DENERHAERBARSESS
on bank borrowings as a significant source of liquidity. Ko REBKBRITIEERAERX
MBNE & R o
The following liquidity risk tables set out the remaining RTzREEeRBRREEUE
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting period HARMBZBEEREREE LR
of the Group’s and Company’s financial liabilities based SEERARRHFEERREH
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest AZBATEHER (BRSO
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, ol (fAZBF)E) REEHR
based on rates current at the end of the reporting period) ZBEEMEFEZHENAR) - &
and the earliest date the Group and Company can be ANEB R AR E A ERNRZ
required to pay: =FEHE
Group REEHE
More than More than Total
Within 1yearbut  2yearshut  contractual
1 year or less than less than undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount
—-FRy% BA-FE BAWEE SORER
REX RWER REFR RERELE BREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET THT THET FHET
2012 —E-Cf
Accounts payable EMERIE 1,195 - - 1,195 1,195
Accruals [E=+30B 6,650 - - 6,650 6,650
Accrued salaries, wages [EstEe IT&
and henefits Riadl 3,613 - - 3,613 3,613
Other payables Hit AR 138 - - 138 138
Bank borrowings BITEE 45,226 - - 45,226 39,794
Finance lease payable B RERAZE 133 123 Al 327 303
56,955 123 7 57,149 51,693
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43.Financial risk management objectives and policies 43. ¥ REREE B ERBER (&)

(Continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) AIEEEHEZE (&)
(i) Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) HEEzEE (&)
Group (Continued) rEE (&)
More than More than Total
Within 1 year but 2 years but contractual
1 year or less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount
—FR%  BRE-FE BERFE SORER
REK INTESN REFR RENELH FREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TR TER TAT TEL
2011 —E--F
Accounts payable TERBRTE 978 - - 978 978
Accruals JE=t31R 11,463 = - 11,463 11,463
Accrued salaries, wages EitEe 1A
and benefits RE# 2,441 - - 2,441 2,441
Other payables Hit B 10,882 - - 10,882 10,882
Bank borrowings BITEE 30,624 - - 30,624 27,797
Finance lease payable EREERNZE - - - - -
56,388 - - 56,368 53,561
Company KAT
More than More than Total
Within 1yearbut  2vyearshut contractual
1 year or less than less than undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount
—-FRs BAE-FE BEWFE AORER
REX RRER REFR RERELE FEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TER TAR TER TAR
2012 —g-CF
Accruals JEztTE 2,997 - - 2,997 2,997
Other payables Hib 7R 27 - - 27 27

3,024 - - 3,024 3,024
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3. BERREEREREEK (&)

43.Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(a) MIBEREE (&)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i) Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) TEEzREE (&)

Company (Continued) RAT (&)
More than More than Total
Within 1 year but 2 years but contractual
1 year or less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount
—ERNyg  BB-FE BBERERE AORER
RE% RRFA REEA RERERs REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRT TAT TR TAET TET
2011 —g--%
Accruals st 7R 3,325 = = 3,325 3,325
Other payables HipfERZE 27 = = 27 27
3352 - - 3352 335

The table that follows summarises the maturity analysis
of bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause
based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the
loan agreements. The amounts include interest payments
computed using contractual rates. As a result, these
amounts are greater than the amounts disclosed in the "on
demand" time band in the above maturity analysis. Taking
into account of the Group's financial position, the directors
of the Company do not consider it probable that the bank
will exercise its discretion to demand immediate repayment.
The directors of the Company believe that such bank
borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.

TREGEEF RS EREE
ZER T IREAEERR L
RITEEZZNHADN - SEEE
RIRE WFRFTH 2 S FR08
Hik - ESBRAR LA BIH S
R RESRER] BERIAZ
TR KA AR E 2B
& ARBEFATR/RITAE
AIRE R ITIE E YIS HE A B SR By
BE - ARREFERRE ZFR
TR BRI & i P8 TR E
BB HER -
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43.Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(1)

(ifi)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Maturity Analysis — Term Loans subject to a repayment
on demand clause based on scheduled repayments

3. PHEBEEEEREE (£)

(a) BEREEEE (&)

B ER AR ()

Mo - ARBERGRBER
EERBERZEHER

The Group rEHE
More than More than
1yearbut 2 years hut Total
Within less than less than More than undiscounted
1 year 2 years 5 years 5years cash outflows
BB-F BBME RERRE
—-FR  ERAWFA  ERLFA BBREE RAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT AT FET TAT AL
—E-C—F
30 April 2012 MAE=tH 2,426 2,426 7,277 33,097 45,226
2
30 April 2011 MA=1H 2942 1,510 4,530 21,642 30,624
Interest-rate risk (ifi) T/ 2 e

Except for certain interest-bearing bank deposits and bank
borrowings and finance lease payable, the Group has
no significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities. The
Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. Bank
deposits and bank borrowings issued at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk. Finance
lease payable at fixed rate exposes the Group to fair value
interest rate risk. Details of the Group’s finance lease
payable and bank borrowings have been disclosed in note
31 and 32 respectively to the financial statements.

The Group has not entered into any interest rate swaps to
hedge its exposure to interest risks.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank
Offer Rate arising from the Group’s Hong Kong dollar
borrowings.

BRE TR EBRITER  RITEE
KMEMNBEHORRN  RNEH
YEERFEEERAR A%
Bz WARGERERERNH L
BIUIRMGHER 28 - RITHF
RRIBEH A REL ZRITEE
FEAEEHHRSRENERE
- MEEMNERFEZENRE
GEROR /SRR SLITETE I NS S
ZREKR - BAAKEEMNBER
MFRAERBITIEE ZFHBED A
BT TS SRR 31 e P 5 324K R -

7N 82 B 3 48 5] 37 A {] 1) 2= 4 2 LA
HRPrmE S MR R o

AEEZRERENZARER
STRAKEZETEEMEL
ZEBBRITAEFEMEKES -
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43.Financial risk management objectives and policies 43. M EREEEFERBEK (&)
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) FIBEBEZE (&)
(iii) Interest-rate risk (Continued) (i) FIERfE (&
(i) Interest rate profile () FIZ=BR
The following table details the interest rate profile of TRFAVIAEEEBERRE
the Group’s borrowings at the end of the reporting HAZR 2 F =R -
period:
Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rates rates
BERA= B A&
% HK$’000 % HK$'000
FTHET FET

Fixed rate borrowings: BEEFMZEE :
Finance lease payable e Re & B 49 50R 5.92 303 - -

Variable rate borrowings: S EFIREE :
Bank borrowings RITEE 1-25 39,794 0.9-285 27,797

Total borrowings wEE 40,097 27,797

Net fixed rate borrowings  [&EF Fl =& & %58
as a percentage of total EREE R
net borrowings ZAED 0.76% 0%
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43.Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(i) Interest-rate risk (Continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis

Finance lease payable of the Group which is fixed-rate
instrument is insensitive to any change in interest rates.
A change in interest rate at the end of the reporting
period would not affect profit or loss.

At 30 April 2012, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates would
increase/decrease the Group’s loss after tax and
accumulated losses by approximately HK$332,000
(2011: HK$232,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had
been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for
non-derivative financial instruments in existence at
that date. The 100 basis points increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the period until
the next end of the reporting period.

(iv) Currency risk

The Group’s operations are mainly in Hong Kong and PRC.
Entities within the Group are exposed to foreign exchange
risk from future commercial transactions and monetary
assets and liabilities that are denominated in a currency
that is not the entity’s functional currency.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy, It manages its foreign currency risk by closely
monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates
and will consider entering into forward foreign contracts to
reduce the exposure should the need arise.

3. PHEBEEEEREE (£)

(a) FIBEREE (&

(ii§) FIFERE ()

(i) SURREDHT

REB 2 ER B &R LORIE
RIEEENEGFE TR
4 fr] FI) 3R B B DGR ©
R EHARME 2 ZF gD
2B -
R-_E——FWA=+H"
ERRREER- SR RSN
1001E E B #3200 R A AR
SERBREERREEE
#9332,0008 7T (=& ——4F :
232,000757T) ©

EAEREE DA TR AR A K
RBERRHRESME
EoYEARZBEREFEEL
FETEMBIAZHNER
% o 5% 1001 2 % 2 8 H0 kR
PEREEENENERHA
ET—AREBRAEAHE
HIR 228 -

(iv) BB
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43.Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv) Currency risk (Continued)

(1)

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure at
the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in
a currency other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate. The currency giving rise
to this risk is primarily Renminbi. The Company is
not expose to material currency risk at the end of the
reporting period.

3. BERREEREREEK (&)

(a) FIEEREEZE (&)

(iv) E¥ER (&

(i)

AXEEER

TRAMTEERBFEHR
REHERDEER UG
BifEZEHEREEXAR
FREEXZE¥RER - E4EIL
REzERETBZESARE -
AR AR E BRI 8 w3
EAEEER

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in HK$’000)
¥z MERBR (AT B THIR)

Group
F&EH
2012 2011
—E——f —T——F
RMB us$ RMB us$
AR¥ En AR T
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReEEER 4,084 46,503 5,390 85,033
Overall exposure arising from ERREERARE
recognised assets and liabilities P4 7 B a2 ke 4,084 46,503 5,390 85,033
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43.Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv) Currency risk (Continued)
(i) Sensitivity analysis
The following table indicates the approximate change
in the Group’s loss after tax (and accumulated losses) in
response to reasonably possible changes in the foreign

exchange rate to which the Group has significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period.

3. PHEBEEEEREE (£)

(a) HBEEEZE ()

(iv) E¥ER (&)

(i)

g

BRE DT

G

TRETRBESHRAEH
P B K A g 2 SN T 2R
ZEBAREE  MTAE
BRI EEE (RREER)
HIRZ BB -

2012 2011

—E——F —EF=——4F
Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on
(decrease) loss after (decrease) loss after
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange accumulated exchange accumulated
rate losses rate losses
SIS EE 2R HERBIE HINES [ 3 HRME
R/ BERRE A EERZRE
(T) BREZEE® (TR) EBEz2E
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FHETT
RMB AR 5% 170 5% 225
5% (170) (5%) (225)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred
at the end of the next annual reporting period and
had been applied to the Group’s exposure to currency
risk for both derivative and non derivative financial
instruments in existence at that date, and that all other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

BRRE DT TH R RSN ' R
RT—EFERSHRHR
EHmER - AERANAE
BN AR FEEZITERT
TARFITAEMBIAZE
R\ - MATAHEMEE (5
BIEMEK) (REFAEE -



ETEEERA &l F #2012

145

43.Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv) Currency risk (Continued)

v)

(i) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The stated changes represent management’s assessment
of reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange
rate over the period until the next annual end of the
reporting period. In this respect, it is assumed that the
pegged rate between the Hong Kong dollar and the
United States dollar would be materially unaffected by
any changes in movement in value of the United States
dollar against other currencies. Results of the analysis as
presented in the above table represent an aggregation
of the effects on each of the Group’s entities loss after
tax and equity measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into Hong Kong dollar at the
exchange rate ruling at the end of the reporting period
for presentation purposes. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for 2011.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from
equity investments of trading securities classified as equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss (see note 26).

The Group’s listed equity investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange and Canadian Stock Exchange. Decisions to buy or
sell trading securities are based on daily monitoring of the
performance of individual securities compared to that of the
stock market index and other industry indicators, as well as
the Group’s liquidity needs.

3. BEBEEBEREE (&)

(a) MIBEREE (&)

(iv) &

Em (&)
(i) BEREDIW (&)

Pl 2 F B IR B IR AT (AN
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v) BRAERE R
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43.Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(v) Equity price risk (Continued)
At 30 April 2012, it is estimated that an increase/(decrease)
of 5% (2011: 5%) in the relevant stock market index (for
listed investments), with all other variables held constant,

would have decreased/increased the Group’s loss after tax
(and accumulated losses) as follows:

Group

3. PHEBEEEBERBE (&

(a) HBEEEZE ()

) BAEEEE (&)

RZZE—Z—FWHA=+H"' &M
Bl (LR EMS) £
FATH) % (ZF — — F:
5%) T FT A E A B BB - (4
AR R EE (REEE
B) Ee IR 80

A5EH
2012
—E-——F
Effect on
loss after
tax and

accumulated

2011
—T——F
Effect on
loss after
tax and

accumulated

losses losses
BB HERBiE
BERER BEKRER
BRzEE BEzTE
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Change in the relevant equity  1BREA% (B E R & 81
price risk variable: 2 e
Increase A0 5% 1,254 5% 1,951
Decrease Ve 5% (1,254) (5%) (1,951)
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43.Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

Equity price risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s loss after tax (and accumulated losses) and
other components of consolidated equity that would arise
assuming that the changes in the stock market index or
other relevant risk variables had occurred at the end of
reporting period and had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to equity price risk at the end of the reporting period.
It is also assumed that the fair values of the Group’s equity
investments would change in accordance with the historical
correlation with the relevant stock market index or the
relevant risk variables, that none of the Group’s available-
for-sale investments would be considered impaired as a
result of the decrease in the relevant stock market index
or other relevant risk variables, and that all other variables
remain constant. The analysis is preformed on the same
basis for 2011.

Fair values

(i)  Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value of
financial instruments measured at fair value at the
end of the reporting period across the three levels of
the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7, Financial
Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value of each
financial instruments categorised in its entirety based
on the lowest level of input that is significant to that fair
value measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

—  Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical financial instruments

3. BEBEEBEREE (&)

(a) MBEBEEE ()

() RAERE@EE (&)
HREDMBER - REBTEHR

(vi)
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43.Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(vi) Fair values (Continued)

(i)  Financial instruments carried at fair value (Continued)

—  Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices
in active markets for similar financial instruments,
or using valuation techniques in which all
significant inputs are directly or indirectly based on
observable market data

—  Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using
valuation techniques in which any significant input
is not based on observable market data

3. PHEBEEEBERBE (&

(a) FIBEREEE (&)

Vi) ~FE (&)

(i)

BRAFEIEZHMBTA
(%)

— A ERXRERZ
MR RUMBTAZ#H
B ZEE2HAER
HEELERARTBRET
BB RRIE 2 (AERM
ERDFEFTE

- F=R(REFH &
RENEEHABBGT
A BRI 8UR RIRIE
ZEERME R A ER

=2
2012 —E--F
The Group
AEE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E— B E= a5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FET FHET THET
Assets BE
Equity investments at fair A EAERSIER
value through profit or loss 7 BERE 30,043 - - 30,043
Derivative financial PTEMBTEA —
instrument — Termination iR
Right - - 16,159 16,159
Total St 30,043 - 16,159 46,202
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43.Financial risk management objectives and policies 43. AR EEEFERBEK (&)
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) BIBREREAZE (FZ)
(vi) Fair values (Continued) Vi) 2F1E (&)

() Financial instruments carried at fair value (Continued) () BRAFEINEZHBEILA
(&)

2011 —T——F

The Group
REH
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—H FoHK FE=H A&t
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
FEx  FTET  FTET  FER

Assets EE
Equity investments at fair BEATEAERT R
value through profit or loss BAERE 46,683 = = 46,683
Derivative financial PTEMBEITA —
instrument — Termination IRUERE
Right = = = -
Total st 46,683 - - 46,683
During the year there were no significant transfers FRFE—FREF KT EZREWEL
between instruments in Level 1 and Level 2. fa] 8 NEEHE o
Reconciliation of level 3 fair value measurements of HEYBEEF=RAFEEZEH K
financial assets
Group
rEE
2012 2011
—EB-_F —=F——
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Derivative financial PTHEBIEITE —
instrument — Termination Right RIERE
At 1 May MREAR—H - =
Fair value gain N ERE 16,159 -
At 30 April RIUA=+H 16,159 =
Fair value gain on derivative financial instrument is PTEGBTREz A FEKRZTATE

included in “other gains”. o lzs | o
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43.Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(vi) Fair values (Continued)

(i) Fair value of financial instruments carried at other than
fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost, except for
those available-for-sale investments of which the fair
value cannot be measured reliably as detailed in note
20 note (i), are not materially different from their fair
values as at 30 April 2011 and 2012.

(b) Capital risk management

The Group’s objective when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio,
which is calculated as total borrowings divided by total equity as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
gearing ratios as at 30 April 2012 and 2011 were as follows:

3. PHEBEEEEREE (£)

(a) ABEBERFZE (&

i) AFE ()

(i) JEBAFEFIEZHBIA
FINT

2N 55 [ 922 P AN 2 B SH R AR |
fR2 Bi7s T ARRE(E (M
B EE20F FE() P st L X PR R
TR SEFt B 2 AT &R
BN BR-_F——F k=
Z—_FMA=+BZRAYF
BEYEBRER -

(b) EF @b EE

AEEEREAZ BN AREREE
FERE 28N URIKREIRMEH
P EtEmts B ARENE - Wi
FREBREBAREE AR -

AEE R RBARMN TR ZK
B2 BEEATHRRLBEITHR

ARERBABLEERAS A
Ho % Ty AR A BB IRR R PR 2 18 5
PERABERHE - R=F—— %
ER-T—TEMA=1A2ABELE
M -

Group

AEE
2012 2011
—B-=F —FE——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&ET TATT
Bank borrowings RITEE 39,794 27,797
Finance lease payable FET BB AFRIE 303 =
Total borrowings EEHmza 40,097 27,797
Total equity B 308,242 348,927
Gearing ratio BELX 0.13 0.08
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43.Financial risk management objectives and policies 43. M EREEEFERBEK (&)
(Continued)

(c) Estimation of fair values (c) =FlEZ 145

The following summarises the major methods and assumptions T ARG A T B ITAZ A

used in estimating the fair values of the following financial FE2EEFERRE -

instruments.

(i) Securities () EH
The fair value is based on quoted market prices at the end REEERERRAHR 2 TE
of the reporting period. The quoted market prices used for FE e AKEFEESMACT
securities held by the Group is the closing bid price at the BREAREHARZWMEANE -

end of the reporting period.

(i) Bank borrowings (i) WITIEER
The fair value is estimated as the present value of future ANFEEEFARRBREREZ
cash flows, discounted at current market interest rates for REEE TEHREUMBIAZ
similar financial instruments. B A5 2R o
44, Capital commitments 44, BRRIE
At 30 April 2012, the Group had the following capital commitments: RZZE——FWA=+H A&EBZER
AYENT -
Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E—_—F ===k
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Contracted but not provided for ERTAVEREE

— Property, plant and equipment — W% - BEREE - 13,230
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45.Summary of financial assets and liabilities by

category

45. ZERE D M BEEREERE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s financial
assets and liabilities recognised at the end of the reporting period

may also be categorised as follows.

RNBEPRCHERBZARERARNRBIMH
BEEMABREENIRATERSES -

Group Company
REE FIN/NE]
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E--F —FT——F ZB-ZH —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FH&TT FET FHETT
Financial Assets BREE
Equity investments at fair value R AF{EIAIBZEIER
through profit or loss L BHRE 30,043 46,683 - =
Available-for-sale investments Al HEKE 16,882 21,834 - =
Derivative financial instrument PTEMBIT A 16,159 = - =
63,084 68,517 - —
Loan and receivables: Bk R e W kA
— Accounts receivable — FEUBR TR 471 489 - =
— Amounts due from subsidiaries  — FEUfT B A &7 ZE - = 242,149 307,618
— Moneylending loan receivables — — JEWNEER 23,026 14,655 - =
— Loan interest receivables — B E T A 882 = - =
— Other receivables — E e uzoE 2,624 1,234 - =
— Amount due from — U RS E
a jointly-controlled entity EQEE] 234 267 - -
— Staff advance —BI#X 90 100 - =
— Credit card receivables — EARERFIE 108 202 - -
— Cash and cash equivalents - BekBEeEE
IHH 125,647 197,198 13,584 25,503
153,082 214,145 255,733 333,121
216,166 282,662 255,733 333,121
Financial Liabilities BKaE
Financial liabilities measured at IS4k At =
amortised cost: ZHEEE
— Accounts payable — EFERR 1,195 978 - =
— Accruals — JEEHEIB 6,650 11,463 2,997 3,325
— Accrued salaries, wages — EstEHS -
and benefits ITERGER 3,613 2,441 - -
— Other payables — Hib e IB 138 10,882 27 27
— Finance lease payable — TR EREAORIA 303 = - -~
— Bank borrowings — RIT1EE 39,794 27,797 - =
51,693 53,561 3,024 3,352
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46.Major non-cash transaction

(@) During the year, deposit paid for acquisition of investment
properties of HK$2,763,000 were transferred to investment
properties upon acceptance of the title of ownership by the
Group.

(b) During the year, deposit paid for acquisition of property, plant
and equipment of HK$2,067,000 was transferred to property,
plant and equipment upon acceptance of the title of ownership
by the Group.

() During the year, the Group purchased a motor vehicle under
finance lease in the amount of HK$303,000 and is a non-cash
transaction.

47.Events after reporting period

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Group had
acquired an investment property and disposed of an investment
property. The details are as follows:

(@) On 16 July 2012, VGI entered into a share sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party for the purchase of
the entire issued share capital of a company at a consideration
of HK$52,000,000. The purchased company, through its wholly-
owned subsidiary, is the beneficial owner of a retail property
located in Kwun Tong.

(b) On 22 July 2012, Allex entered into a provisional sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to dispose
of an investment property with fair value of HK$5,700,000 as at
30 April 2012 for a consideration of HK$6,050,000.

() On 27 July 2012, VFHC elected to terminate the available-for-sale
investment in relation to Tian Da.

48.COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with
the current year's presentation.

46. TEFBERSH

(@)

FR O MBEREWESIMNA2ES
2,763,0007 7T B A AR £ B 4N BT S
BEBEHEYZE o

b) TR REEVE  BERREBEIN
2 ©2,067,0008 T E R A S B E R
iR B =Y - BB KRR o
0 FR - AEEREREEAYBEEEE
A303,0008 702 /78 - BIFRERS °
47. EHREE

RBERRR - AEECKBE—HREY
EMME—HREYE - FHEWOT

(@

RZZE—ZF+EH+/H " VGIEE
SNE=ZFEINRDEERZ - URE
52,000,000 THEE —H AR 222
BORAE - Iz AREREEE
MBARA—BMRBE L TEME
ZESEAN o

b) RZE—ZF+tHZ+=H " Allex
BB E=FF Y HEEE
E % LA 126,050,000 7T H &S &
E-_T——_FNA=+HAFEE
5,700,00078 7T 2 — B E W ©

O RZZTE——FEHA=++H"  VHGE
BEIEEARARZAIHEERE -

48. LB EF

ETHUBBFEENOE  WHAaAFE
ZE2HA -
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

MBENBE

A summary of the published consolidated results and assets and AR B B RS 2 A B 5ol T A IFERE 2
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years prepared on the ERiraEENNBERBGEZBENT ¢

basis as hereunder stated is as set out below:

Consolidated Results

Consolidated for the year ended 30 April
HEEBZENA=THILFE

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
ZB--f _T——F _T-TF _TTNEF _TIT)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FABTT FHETT FET FETT
(restated) (restated)
(E31]) (871))

Revenue Weas

Loss before taxation B3 AT 18
Income tax FT1S
Loss for the year NEEFEHE
Attributable to: T E A

Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZZ N
Non-controlling interests FEPERR R =

Consolidated Assets and Liabilities

27,650 52,112 102,784 156,178 198,195
(41,151) (10,283) (7,183) (49,979) (27,301)
(69) (280) (757) (304) (392)
(41,220) (10,563) (7,940) (50,283) (27,693)
(41,220) (7,674) (6,507) (45,229) (27,214)
- (2,889) (1,433) (5,054) (479)
(41,220) (10,563) (7,940) (50,283) (27,693)
REEERERE
Consolidated as at 30 April
FEMNMB=+H
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

—F--F T ZT-TF ZTTNF ZFT/N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TATT TAT TAET THAT

TOTAL ASSETS BEE

TOTAL LIABILITIES BaE

384,194 427,635 425,266 421,745 473,580

(75,952) (78,708) (60,058) (48,115) (53,189)

308,242 348,927 365,208 373,630 420,391




ETEEERA &l F #2012

155

LIST OF PROPERTIES
MET &

Locations Existing use Term of lease
i 2 35 B 3R FHEHR
Investment properties
REYE

1. Flat E, 9/F., Tower 1, StarCrest, Residential Medium term
9 Star Street, Wanchai, Hong Kong *= FR Hf
BEBETETSRESF1EIEERE

2. Flat F, 5/F, Tower 6, Harbour Place, Residential Medium term
8 0i King Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon F= H A
NEEAL I E =855 8 A =6 E5EFE

3. Flat B, 10/F, Tower 7, Harbour Place, Residential Medium term
8 0i King Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon = FA Hf
NBEAME = H8I /B EmE7EI10IERE

4. Flat C, 10/F, Tower 7, Harbour Place, Residential Medium term
8 0i King Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon = R HA
NEAME =485 8 =7 10ECE

5, Flat D, 8/F., Tower 7, Harbour Place, Residential Medium term
8 0i King Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon = H Hf
NBEAME SHSHEEMF7ESEDE

6. Flat D, 43/F., Tower | and Car Parking Space Residential Medium term
No. 2-083, 2/F., The Harbourside, F= H Hf
No. 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon
NEFTEERIRERR T 1E43EDE
K 52-0835 B L

7. Unit A, 25/F., Le Royal Arc, Residential Medium term
Avenida Sir Anders Ljungstedt, Macau F= H HA
BPm HT R R S B S e PI 2512 A R

8. Flat A&B, 2/F., Queen’s Centre, Commercial Medium term
58-64 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong [EHES rh 87

BBETERKERES-645 /AR =R O2EARBE
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10.

11.

12.

13.

Locations Existing use Term of lease

i 25 BB THEHR

Investment properties

REW=

Residential car parking space 604 on 6th Floor Residential Medium term

of Harbour Place, 8 Oi King Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon (E2=2 FR 5

NEEALWE RAT85: /8 B m F 6126045 (T EH U

Residential car parking space 602 on 6th Floor Residential Medium term

of Harbour Place, 8 Oi King Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon (E=2 FR A

NEEAWE R85 /88 /M F6i26025% (T EHB (L

Residential car parking space 637 on 6th Floor Residential Medium term

of Harbour Place, 8 Oi King Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon (E2=2 FA R

NEEALWE RET85% /8 8/ F6i2637 R ETHM

Office E, 22nd Floor, EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road, Commercial Medium term

Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong [EES B

BB NEEEBEESREREES22IEEE

BN T KA & ROr AL B& 2335536065 Commercial Medium term
[GES B Hf

Leasehold land and building held for own

use carried at cost

ARSI EREEAZEEL BRETF

Office A, 17th Floor, EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road, Commercial Medium term

Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong = A

BERNEBEREES R RREES17EAE

Car parking space No.P25 on 1st Floor, EGL Tower, Commercial Medium term

83 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong FEi=e H HA

BB NEBEIBEESI TR R E S 1EFEP25IRE L

Lease premium for land

TS

BHIEE ARG HELMmE (FRRE) Commercial Medium term

[GES

&
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